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PC3-INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No.:46/GMS Resolution Da Nang, April 16, 2025
RESOLUTION

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS - 2025
PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY;
Pursuant to the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders -
2025;

RESOLVES:

1. Approval of the business results for 2024; report on corporate management
and operations in 2024; and business plan for 2025, as presented in Proposal
No. 31/Rep.-BOD dated April 4, 2025 of the Board of Directors, with the
following key contents:

a. Business results for 2024: All aspects of the Company’s operations
complied with State regulations, the Company’s Charter, and Resolutions of
the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) and the Board of Directors
(BOD). The Company strived to overcome difficulties and achieved the
following key objectives:

a.1. Production and business performance:

Total commercial electricity output reached 93.49 million kWh; total
revenue reached VND 121.89 billion; net profit after tax reached VND 32.20
billion; dividend payout ratio reached 8% (as planned by the 2024 GMYS);
absolute safety in labor was ensured; environmental protection, fire
prevention, and disaster prevention were well implemented.

a.2. Investment and construction tasks:

+ Dak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (Raising Dam A and
Constructing Plant Cluster B - 1.6MW):

- Completed land clearance compensation, and the People’s Committee
of Kon Tum Province issued the Land Use Rights Certificate for the
remaining land of the pressure pipeline, power plant, discharge canal, and



step-up substation on July 25, 2024. Compensation for the 22kV transmission
line land is ongoing.

- Conducted online bidding and signed contracts for the remaining five
bidding packages.

- Completed agreements with EVNCPC, including (1)
Telecommunication and SCADA system agreement for Plant B with the Kon
Tum Dispatch Center, (2) Connection design agreement for Plant B, and (3)
Technical design agreement for metering and data collection system.

- Construction and equipment fabrication: Prepared and commenced
construction on May 14, 2024. Excavation is 70% complete; water intake
concrete work and pressure pipeline foundation were finished in Phase 1
(May 2024); pressure pipeline, gantry crane, and main turbine-generator unit
have been delivered to the site. Remaining equipment is under fabrication,
and additional excavation for Phase 2 land acquisition is in progress (July
2024). The project is on schedule.

- Disbursement value: 11.084 billion VND.
+ PC3-INVEST Office Building Project:

- Conducted online bidding and signed contracts for the remaining
nine bidding packages.

- Construction progress: Started on June 7, 2024. Foundation,
basement, and floors have been completed; wall construction is done, and
finishing works are ongoing. The project is on schedule.

- Disbursement value: 10.093 billion VND.

a.3. Purchase of Fixed Assets for business operations: Purchase of 01 car
for business operations: 0.71 billion VND.

a.4. Corporate governance and operations: Strengthened management
efficiency, reduced operational costs by 30.42% compared to the approved
budget, implemented various technical improvement initiatives, and ensured
full compliance with regulations.

b. Business plan for 2025:
b.1. Production and business targets:

+ Estimated total commercial electricity output: 100 million kWh (Dak
Pone Hydropower Plant: 64.65 million kWh from Reservoir A, 0.94 million
kWh from Reservoir B; Da Krong 1 Hydropower Plant: 34.41 million kWh).

+ Estimated total revenue: VND 126.15 billion [Electricity sales: VND
125.65 billion (Dak Pone: VYND 76.91 billion, Da Krong 1: VND 48.74
billion), financial revenue: VND 0.5 billion].



+ Estimated net profit after tax: VND 28.231 billion; projected
dividend payout ratio: 8%.

b.2. Investment and construction targets:

+ Plant Cluster B (1.6MW): Complete compensation for the 22kV
transmission line land; continue construction and equipment installation, with
expected operation in October 2025. Estimated disbursement: VND 18.28
billion.

+ PC3-INVEST Office Building Project: Continue construction and
equipment installation, expected completion in June 2025. Estimated
disbursement: VND 14.283 billion.

b.3. Fixed asset procurement: Purchase of one business vehicle worth
VND 0.8 hillion.

2. Approval of the 2024 financial statements audited by ECOVIS AFA
Vietnam Co., Ltd., as presented in Report No.31/Rep.-BOD dated April 4,
2025 of the BOD.

3. Approval of the 2024 Board of Directors’ report on corporate governance
and individual BOD members' performance.

4. Approval of the 2024 Supervisory Board’s report on the company’s
business performance, BOD activities, CEO’s performance, and financial
review.

5. Approval of the selection of an independent auditor for the 2025 financial
statements, authorizing the BOD to choose among four firms: AAC Auditing
& Accounting Co., Ltd.; RSM Vietnam; ECOVIS AFA Vietnam; A&C
Auditing & Consulting Co., Ltd., as per Report No.08/Rep.-SB dated April 4,
2025 of the Supervisory Board.

6. Approval of the 2024 profit distribution plan and the proposed 2025 profit
distribution plan, as presented in Report No.32/Rep.-BOD dated April 4, 2025
of the BOD.

7. Approval of the 2024 remuneration and salary payments and the 2025 plan
for BOD and Supervisory Board, as per Report No.33/Rep.-BOD dated April
4, 2025.

8. Approval of the reversal of post-tax profit from the Development
Investment Fund, as per Report No.34/Rep.-BOD dated April 4, 2025.

9. Personnel changes in the BOD and Supervisory Board:
9.1. Board of Directors:

*Approving the dismissal of Mr. Tran Dang Hien and Mr. Nguyen Trong
Vinh as BOD members (term 2023-2028).



* Approving the appointment of Mr. Tran Cong Minh and Mr. Nguyen Tan
Luc as BOD members (term 2025-2030).

9.2. Supervisory Board:

* Approving the dismissal of Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong and Mr.VVu Ngoc
Thu as Supervisory Board members (term 2023-2028).

* Approving the appointment of Mr. Le Ky Anh and Mr. Duong Ngoc Thinh
as Supervisory Board members (5 year term 2025-2030).

The Board of Directors, CEO, Supervisory Board, and relevant individuals
are responsible for implementing this Resolution.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- All shareholders; MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Members of the Board of CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
Directors;

- General Director;

- Supervisory Board;

- Publish on the company website;
- Archive: Office, Accounting.

Le Van Nghiep



TMENT JOINT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
OMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Danang, 16 April 2025

REPORT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS - 2025
PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

At 08:00 AM on April 16, 2025, at the Operation Management
Headquarters of Hydropower Plants under EVNGENCO2 in Da Nang - No. 143
Xo Viet Nghe Tinh Street, Khue Trung Ward, Cam Le District, Da Nang City,
PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company held the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

I. Participants of the Meeting:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company, including:

+ Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the BOD

+ Mr. Le Huy Khoi - Member of BOD, General Director
+ Mr. Tran Dinh Loi - Member of BOD

+ Mr. Tran Dang Hien - Member of BOD

+ Mrs. Nguyen Thi Huong - Member of BOD
+ Mr. Nguyen Trong Vinh - Member of BOD
2. The Supervisory Board of the Company, including:
+ Mrs. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong - Chairman of the SB
+ Mrs. Hoang Thi Huong - Member of SB
+ Mr. Vu Ngoc Thu - Member of SB
3. Shareholders and their authorized representatives
4. The Management Board, employees of the Company.
5. Delegates.
I1. The Process of Conducting the General Meeting:
A. Procedures:
1.Mr. Le Trung Khoa - Organizing Committee
+ Opening Remarks and Statement of Purpose for the General Meeting.
+ Introduction of the Delegates and Participants of the General Meeting.
2. Mrs. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong - Chairman of the SB

Report on the Shareholder Eligibility Verification: The total number of
shareholders present as of 08:00 on April 16, 2025, is 20 shareholders, holding
and representing 27,895,393 shares attending the General Meeting, compared to
the total number of shares entitled to vote of the Company, which is 33,339,891
shares, accounting for 83.67%. According to regulations, the Annual General
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Meeting - 2025 of Power Investment Joint Stock Company No. 3 is authorized
to proceed.

3. Mr. Le Trung Khoa - Organizing Committee

Introduction of the Chair of the General Meeting, including:

+ Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the Board of Directors
+ Mr. Le Trung Khoa - Board Member, CEO

4. Ong Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the Board of Directors
- Appointing the Secretariat, including:

+ Mr. Le Trung Khoa - Head of the Secretariat

+ Mr. Nguyen Duc Linh - Member

- Approving the Vote Counting Committee and the Election Committee,
including:

+ Mr. Phan Van Hung - Head of the Committee

+ Mr. Nguyen Minh Hoali - Member

+ Mrs. Diep Le Truc Xuyen - Member

+ Mrs. Pham Ha Lan Chi - Member

The General Meeting voted to approve:

+ The Vote Counting Committee and The Election Committee, with the
result that the approval votes are 27,895,393/27,895,393 shares, accounting for
100%.

5. Mr. Phan Van Hung - Head of the Vote Counting Committee

Announced the rules for organizing the General Meeting and the voting
procedures for the items presented at the meeting.

B. Agenda of the General Meeting:

* Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented and
approved the agenda of the General Meeting and the organizational regulations
for the meeting.

The General Meeting voted to approve:

+ The agenda of the General Meeting, with the result that the approval votes
are 27,895,393/27,895,393 shares, accounting for 100%.

+ The organizational regulations of the General Meeting, with the result that
the approval votes are 27,895,393/27,895,393 shares, accounting for 100%.

* Report on the items presented to the General Meeting:

- Mr. Le Huy Khoi - Board Member, CEO presented the report on the
business results for 2024; the management and operation work of the company
in 2024 and the business plan for 2025.

- Mr. Nguyen Minh Hoai - Chief Accountant presented the audited financial
statements for 2024.
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- Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the
Board of Directors' report for 2024 on the governance and operational results of
the Board of Directors and each individual member of the Board.

- Mrs. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong - Head of the Supervisory Board presented
the Supervisory Board’s report for 2024 on the activities of the Supervisory
Board; the company’s business results, the operational results of the Board of
Directors, the CEO, and the Supervisory Board’s 2024 evaluation report; the
proposal to introduce independent auditing firms for the selection of an auditor
for the 2024 financial statements.

- Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairman of the Board of Directors presented the
proposal for the profit distribution plan for 2024 and the projected profit
distribution plan for 2025; the proposal for salaries and bonuses for 2024 and the
salary and bonus plan for 2025 for the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Board, and the Executive Board; the proposal for the reversal of after-tax profits
from the Development Investment Fund; the proposal for the dismissal of
members of the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board for the 2023-2028
term.

* The General Meeting proceeded with the discussion: At the meeting, no
shareholders participated in giving comments.

* The General Meeting voted to approve the following items: The total
number of shareholders present at the time of voting on the proposed items for
the General Meeting is 24 shareholders, holding and representing 27,902,154
shares attending the meeting. The voting results for the proposed items are as
follows:

1. Approval of the business results for 2024; the report on the
company's management and operation in 2024 and the business plan for
2025, as presented in Proposal No. 30/Rep.-BOD dated April 4, 2025, from
the Board of Directors, with the following result:

Approved :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %

Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

2. Approval of the 2024 financial statements audited by ECOVIS AFA
Vietnam Co., Ltd., as presented in Proposal No. 31/Rep.-BOD dated April
4, 2025 by the Board of Directors, with the following results:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

3. Approval of the 2024 report of the Board of Directors on corporate
governance and the performance of the Board of Directors as a whole and
of each individual member, with the following results:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

3/6



No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

4. Approval of the 2024 report of the Supervisory Board on its
performance; the Company’s business results; the performance of the
Board of Directors and the General Director; and the Supervisory Board’s
appraisal report for 2024, with the following results:

Approved :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

5. Approval of the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial
statements according to Proposal No. 08/Rep.-SB dated April 4, 2025 of the
Supervisory Board: agreeing to authorize the Board of Directors to decide on
the selection of one among the four auditing firms, namely AAC Auditing and
Accounting Co., Ltd,, RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.,
ECOVIS AFA Vietnam Auditing, Valuation and Consulting Co., Ltd., and A&C
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. to audit the 2025 financial statements, with
the following results:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

6. Approval of the 2024 profit distribution plan and the proposed 2025
profit distribution plan as presented in Proposal No. 32/Rep.-BOD dated
April 4, 2025 by the Board of Directors, with the following results:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

7. Approval of the 2024 actual salaries and remunerations, and the 2025
salary and remuneration plan for the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Board, and the Executive Board as presented in Proposal No. 33/Rep.-BOD
dated April 4, 2025 by the Board of Directors, with the following results:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

8. Approval of the reversal of post-tax profit from the Development
Investment Fund according to Proposal No. 34/Rep.-BOD dated April 4,
2025 of the Board of Directors, with the voting results as follows:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

9. Dismissal of members of the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Supervisory Board (SB) for the 2023-2028 term according to Proposal No.
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35/Rep.-BOD dated April 4, 2025 of the Board of Directors, with the voting
results as follows:

* Approval of dismissal of BOD member Mr. Tran Dang Hien for the
2023-2028 term:

Approved  :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

* Approval of dismissal of BOD member Mr. Nguyen Trong Vinh for
the 2023-2028 term:

Approved :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

* Approval of dismissal of SB member Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong for
the 2023-2028 term:

Approved :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

* Approval of dismissal of SB member Mr. Vu Ngoc Thu for the 2023-
2028 term:

Approved :27,902,154/27,902,154 shares, accounting for 100 %
Disapproved : 0. shares, accounting for 0%
No opinion : 0. shares, accounting for 0%

* Election of additional members to the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term:

- Mr. Phan Van Hung - Head of the Election Committee - introduced the
election regulations and voting procedures

- Mr. Le Van Nghiep - Chairperson - approved the election regulations;
candidate and nominee lists.

+ Total number of shareholders present at the time of voting on the election
regulations and candidate list: 24 shareholders, owning and representing
27,902,154 shares attending the General Meeting.

+ The General Meeting approved the election regulations with
27,902,154/27,902,154 shares in favor, accounting for 100%.

+ The General Meeting approved the list of candidates and nominees with
27,902,154/27,902,154 shares in favor, accounting for 100%.

- List of candidates for additional BOD members for the 2025-2030 term:
1. Mr. Nguyen Tan Luc

2. Mr. Tran Cong Minh

List of candidates for additional SB members for the 2025-2030 term:

1. Mr. Le Ky Anh
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2. Mr. Duong Ngoc Thinh

- The General Meeting proceeded with the voting procedures. The results
were as follows:

No. Full name Number of Percentage of
Approval Votes | Total Votes Cast
I Election of Additional
Members to the Board of
Directors
1 Mr. Tran Cong Minh 27,906,920 100,02%
2 Mr. Nguyen Tan Luc 27,897,388 99,98%
I Election of Additional
Members to the
Supervisory Board
1 Mr. Le Ky Anh 27,905,739 100,01%
2 Mr. Duong Ngoc Thinh 27,898,567 99,99%

+ Elected additional members to the BOD for the 2025-2030 term:
1. Mr. Tran Cong Minh
2. Mr. Nguyen Tan Luc

+ Elected additional members to the SB for the 2025-2030 term:
1. Mr. Le Ky Anh

2. Mr. Duong Ngoc Thinh

The Supervisory Board convened and unanimously elected Mr. Le Ky Anh
as Head of the Supervisory Board for the 2025-2030 term.

This Minutes and the Resolution of the General Meeting were read aloud
and unanimously approved by 100% of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m. on the same day.

Meeting Secretary Chair of the General Meeting

/| W
W /4,// /
R s NN W _ | \7// )/

Le Trung Khoa Nguyen Duc Linh Le Van Nghiep
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PC3 - INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 30 /Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 4, 2025

REPORT
Regarding the approval of the 2024 business performance report; the
report on the management and operation of the company in 2024; and
the business plan for 2025.

To: The General Shareholder’s Meeting of PC3 — Investment Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 27, 2020;
Pursuant to the Charter of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Shareholders'
Meeting.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General
Shareholders' Meeting the 2024 business performance report; the report on
the management and operation of the company in 2024; and the business plan
for 2025 for approval./.

Recipents: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
-As above; DIRECTORS
-Copy to: Office, Accounting. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD




BUSINESS RESULTS REPORT
FOR 2024 AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025.

Part I: BUSSINESS RESULTS FOR 2024

I.1. BUSSINESS RESULTS FOR 2024
I.1.1. General Overview of the Company:

According to the 2024 Production and Business Plan (SXXD - DTXD), the
company has the following key tasks: managing the operation of two hydropower
plants, Dak Pone and Pa Krong 1, with an electricity output target of 92.16 million
kWh, total revenue of 117.71 billion VND, and a post-tax profit of 28.05 billion
VND; investing in the construction of the B Reservoir plant (1.6 MW) as part of the
bak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (dam upgrade for Reservoir A and
construction of the B Reservoir plant) and the PC3-INVEST office building project.
The company's activities have taken place under the following conditions:

a. Favorable factors: The company has received strong support from
shareholders, especially the parent company — Central Power Corporation, assistance
from government agencies in Quang Tri and Kon Tum provinces, and the attention
and direction from the Board of Directors.

b. Challenges: The drought conditions during the first 10 months of 2024 in the
areas of the two power plants, as well as unfavorable external conditions (rain, soil
geology), have posed difficulties in construction at both projects.

With a spirit of overcoming difficulties, the company's entire workforce has
made tremendous efforts to complete key goals, as follows:

1.1.2. Business Production Results:

The company has effectively organized and implemented occupational health
and safety measures, ensuring there were no work-related accidents or subjective
incidents. The operation of the hydropower plants fully adhered to government
regulations regarding environmental protection, fire safety, and natural disaster
response and search and rescue, while also implementing effective maintenance using
the RBM (Risk-Based Maintenance) method. The hydropower plants maximized
water resource efficiency, proactively responded to and overcame difficulties and
dangers posed by floods and heavy rains, ensuring safe and effective production. At
the same time, the company saved on operational costs and used its cash flow
effectively, resulting in reduced financial expenses.The total electricity sales volume
reached 93.49 million kWh, achieving 101.44% of the plan (with DBak Podne
Hydropower Plant generating 59.48 million kWh, reaching 97.67% of the plan, and
Pa Krong 1 Hydropower Plant generating 34.01 million kWh, achieving 108.78% of
the plan). Total revenue was 121.89 billion VND (103.55% of the plan), with
electricity sales revenue amounting to 116.73 billion VND; financial and other
revenues totaled 5.16 billion VND; and after-tax profit reached 32.20 billion VND,
achieving 114.79% of the plan.

Table 1: Business Production Results for 2024



Unit of Actual
No Target Measurement Plan Performance Percentage
1 | Total Electricity Sales kWh 92.169.960 | 93.496.227 |  101,44%
Volume
1 | Dak Pone Hydropower kW 60.902.000 |  59.484.503 97,67%
Da Krong 1 0
2 kWh 31.267.960 | 34.011.724 108,78%
Hydropower Plant
IT | Total Revenue Million VND | 117.713,42 121.895,35 103,55%
1 | Operating revenue Million VND | 117.213,42| 116.730,81 99,59%
1.1 | Dk Pone Hydropower | \figion VND | 72.314,73 | 69.633,74 96,29%
Da Krong 1 1 o
1.2 Million VND 44.898,69 47.097,06 104,90%
Hydropower Plant
1.3 | Other operating Million VND
revenue
2 | Financial revenue Million VND 500 581,80 116,36%
3 | Other revenue and other |y oo yND 4.582,74
income
IIT | Total Expenses Million VND 86.317,97 85.514,54 99,07%
1| ostof Sajes and Million VND | 83.117,97|  80.254,62 96,56%
usiness Operations
1.1 | DaKrong Million VND | 40.425,65|  38.965,32 96,39%
Hydropower Plant
1.2 | DaKrong 1 Million VND | 42.692,32| 41.289,30 96,71%
Hydropower Plant
1.3 | Other Operating Million VND
Expenses
2 | Financial Expenses Million VND 3.200,00 2.612,07 81,63%
3 | Other Expenses Million VND 2.647,85
ry | grossProfitBefore | nrinion VND | 31.39545| 3638084 |  11588%
V | Net Profit After Tax | Million VND 28.055,91 32.205,55 114,79%

I.1.3. Construction Investment Activities:

I.1.3.1. Pak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (Dam Upgrade for

Reservoir A and Construction of the B Reservoir Plant):

Construction of the B Reservoir Plant (1.6 MW):

- The compensation for land acquisition (GPMB) has been completed, and
the Kon Tum Provincial People's Committee has issued the Land Use Rights
Certificate for the remaining land areas, including the pressure pipeline, plant,
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discharge channel, and transformer station, on July 25, 2024. Compensation for the
land required for the 22kV transmission line (the final land portion of the project) is
still in progress.

- The online bidding process has been organized, and contracts have been
signed for the remaining 05 packages under the project: (1) PC3I-DakPone-G02:
Procurement of materials, equipment, and construction of the 22kV/0.4kV
transmission line and transformer station for the construction; (2) PC3I-DakPone-
GO04: Procurement and installation of hydraulic mechanical equipment and electrical
equipment for the plant and the upgraded 22kV transformer station; (3) PC3I-
DakPone-G11: Insurance for the B Reservoir plant complex; (4) PC3I-DakPone-
G12: Audit of the final investment capital settlement for the completed project; and
(5) PC3I-DakPone-G14: Construction supervision and equipment installation for
the B Reservoir plant complex.

- The following agreements with EVNCPC have been completed: (1)
Agreement on the telecommunications and SCADA system for the B Reservoir
Hydropower Plant connected to the Kon Tum PC Control Center; (2) Agreement on
the design documentation for the interconnection works of the B Reservoir
Hydropower Plant; and (3) Agreement on the technical design for the metering
system and data collection system for the B Reservoir Hydropower Plant.

- The preparation work has been completed, and the project was officially
commenced on May 14, 2024. As of now, the contractor has completed 70% of the
excavation work, which accounts for a significant portion of the total project
volume. The concrete works for the water intake gates and pressure pipeline
foundation for the Phase 1 site (May 2024) have been finished. The fabrication of
the pressure pipelines, gantry crane for the machine hall, and the main equipment
for the unit (turbine-generator) have been completed and delivered to the
construction site.Currently, the contractors are continuing to fabricate the remaining
auxiliary equipment as per the contract schedule and are working on the excavation
for the second soil fill phase (July 2024). The construction progress is in line with
the contractual timeline.

- Disbursement value: 11.084 billion VND.
1.1.3.2. Dy an Tru sé lam viéc PC3-INVEST:

- The online bidding process has been conducted, and contracts have been
signed for the remaining 09 packages of the project as follows: (1) PC3I-TSLV-
GO03: Supply of materials and completion of construction works; (2) PC3I-TSLV-
GO04: Supply and installation of the elevator system; (3) PC3I-TSLV-GO05: Supply
and installation of office equipment systems; (4) PC3I-TSLV-G06: Supply and
installation of meeting and video conferencing equipment systems; (5) PC31-TSLV-
GO07: Supply and installation of backup generators; (6) PC3I-TSLV-GO08: Supply
and installation of the air conditioning system; (7) PC3I-TSLV-G09: Construction
supervision services; (8) PC3I-TSLV-GO010: Project insurance and (9) PC3I-TSLV-
G11: Final audit of the project investment settlement..

- The preparation work has been completed, and the project was officially
commenced on June 7, 2024. As of now, the contractor has completed the piling



foundation, basement, and floor slabs of the building. The wall construction has
been finished, and work on the finishing touches is ongoing. Overall, the
construction progress is in line with the contractual schedule.

- Disbursement value: 10.093 billion VND.

I.1.4. Purchase of Fixed Assets for business operations: Purchase of 01 car
for business operations: 0.71 billion VND.

I.2. REPORT ON THE EVALUATION OF COMPANY
MANAGEMENT AND OPERATIONS

1.2.1. Human Resource Management Operations:

As of December 31, 2024, the total number of employees is 67, with a
decrease of 1 employee (due to resignation) during the year. All employees are
covered by insurance (health insurance, unemployment insurance, social insurance)
as per regulations and are guaranteed benefits in accordance with the Labor Code.
They receive regular health check-ups and are provided with full personal protective
equipment. Salary classification and salary increases for employees are carried out
in accordance with the collective labor agreement, with 13 cases having been
considered for salary increments. The implementation of grassroots democracy
follows regulations, with no complaints or labor disputes reported. The company
ensures a safe working environment for all employees.

In 2024, the company continued to maintain training and development activities,
with 154 employees participating in occupational health and safety (OH&S)
training (117 people), professional skills training (14 people), and other training
courses (23 people). Following the directive of EVN and EVNCPC for E-learning
training in 2024, the company had 636 instances of employees completing E-
learning courses, meeting 100% of the assigned target.

1.2.2. Internal Management Operations:

At the beginning of the year, the company established quality objectives (for
each department). On a monthly/quarterly basis, the company monitors and
evaluates the results achieved in relation to the assigned quality objectives. This
approach has fostered innovation in management and operations, enhancing the
organization and control of task execution in a more thorough and effective manner.
In 2024, the company has strengthened compliance control efforts and continued to
maintain risk management in operations. A plan, No. 34/KH-PC31, dated January 8,
2024, was issued regarding inspection, monitoring, and compliance control for the
year 2024. A total of 6 inspections were carried out in 2024 (100% of the planned
target). Thanks to the effective implementation of compliance control alongside risk
management, the company has proactively responded to adverse situations,
minimized damages caused by external factors, and ensured no errors in the
management, operation, or execution of the company’s core tasks.

As part of the plan to innovate management methods and improve the
performance evaluation of teams/individuals, the company has implemented the
KPI system (issuing regulations for establishing, controlling, and evaluating KPI
work performance for departments and employees within the company). This has
brought about positive changes in internal management and has taken a new step
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toward the “fair and transparent” assessment of individual/team contributions linked
to income distribution.

The company continues to maintain and implement the quality management
system according to ISO standards. In 2024, the Quality Measurement and
Standards Technical Center 2 conducted a periodic evaluation of the company's
quality management system based on ISO 9001:2015 for the fields of Project
Management for Power Generation Projects and Electricity Production and
Business.

The company has continued to promote technical improvements and process
optimization in operations, considering this as one of the key criteria for evaluating
the performance of teams and individuals. Over the past year, the company has
recognized and implemented 2 innovations and 4 process optimization solutions
into practice. These improvements and new solutions have contributed to tangible
results in the company’s production and business activities.

1.2.3. Financial Management - Shareholder Management:
1.2.3.1. Financial Management:

The company has organized and implemented financial management in
compliance with regulations, ensuring profitable production and business activities,
maintaining and developing capital, and fulfilling state budget contributions as
required (VND 28.27 billion). The company has also met the assigned financial
targets, with a return on equity of 9.65%, a debt-to-total-assets ratio of 14.69%, and
a current ratio of 3.34 times. The company regularly monitors and manages cash
flow and disbursement plans, ensuring proactive balance and efficient use of funds.
It has also implemented cost-saving measures, limiting expenditures to essential
activities, while reducing or postponing non-essential expenses. The total operating
expenses for 2024 amounted to VND 5.74 billion, which is 69.58% of the value
approved by the Board of Directors (VND 8.25 billion)

1.2.3.2. Shareholder Management:

Shareholder Management is carried out in full compliance with state
regulations for large public companies, ensuring no errors or shareholder
complaints. The company has been recognized as a “Listed Company with
Excellent Information Disclosure on the Vietnamese Stock Market” in the IR
Awards 2024 program.

Dividend Payment Situation for 2023:According to the Resolution of the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders - 2024, No. 54/NQ-DHDCD dated April
16, 2024, and the Proposal No. 50/TTr-HPQT dated April 11, 2024, by the Board
of Directors, the Company has carried out the procedures for paying an interim
dividend for 2023 in cash at a rate of 5% starting from January 29, 2024. The
remaining dividend for 2023 will be paid in cash at a rate of 5% starting from
September 30, 2024, to shareholders in compliance with regulations.

Pursuant to Circular No. 200/2015/TT-BTC dated December 15, 2015, and
Circular No. 77/2021/TT-BTC dated September 17, 2021, issued by the Ministry of
Finance on financial supervision, performance evaluation, and the disclosure of
financial information for state-owned enterprises and enterprises with state capital,

6



the Company meets the criteria for classification as A (excellently fulfilling the
tasks for 2024).

1.2.4. Other Activities:

In 2024, there were 10 inspection teams from State Management Agencies
regarding matters related to electricity production activities. The inspection results
showed that the Company fully complied with all State regulations and had no
violations.

The Company has organized and completed the digital transformation task,
the administrative reform program, and the national defense-security tasks
according to EVNCPC's plan.

The Company has excellently achieved all KPIs-2024 targets and was
evaluated by EVNCPC for excellently fulfilling its tasks.

PART II: BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025
Based on the analysis of the Company's current capabilities and its strategy for the
near future, the Company has set the business plan for 2025 as follows:

II.1. Production and Business Plan:

- The total estimated electricity generation is 100 million kWh (Dak Pone
Hydropower Plant is estimated at 65.59 million kWh and Dak Krong 1 Hydropower
Plant is estimated at 34.41 million kWh).

- Total revenue is estimated at VND 126.15 billion, including electricity
sales revenue of VND 125.65 billion (Dak Pone Hydropower Plant is estimated at
VND 76.91 billion and Dak Krong 1 Hydropower Plant is estimated at VND 48.74
billion), and financial revenue is estimated at VND 0.5 billion.

- Total profit after corporate income tax is estimated at VND 27.63 billion.

- Proactively implement and complete the maintenance plan, and overhaul
the hydropower plants according to the RBM method, ensuring readiness for power
generation capacity as per design specifications.

- Prevent work-related accidents; ensure compliance with operational
procedures and State regulations regarding fire safety, disaster prevention, search
and rescue, occupational safety and hygiene, and environmental protection.

Table 2: Business Plan for 2025

No. Indicator Unit 2025 Plan

I | Total commercial electricity output kWh 100,000,000

Dak Pone Hydropower Plant kWh 65.592.200

2 | Dak Krong 1 Hydropower Plant kWh 34.407.800

II | Total revenue Million 126.154
VND

1 | Revenue from production and business Million 125.654
activities VND

1.1 | Dak Pone Hydropower Plant Million 76.910
VND




No. Indicator Unit 2025 Plan
1.2 | Dak Krong 1 Hydropower Plant Million 48.744
VND
1.3 | Revenue from other production and Million
business activities VND
2 | Financial revenue Million 500
VND
3 | Other revenue and income Million
VND
III | Total expenses Million 91.291
VND
1 | Expenses for production and business Million 88.791
activities VND
2 | Financial operating expenses Million 2.500
VND
IV | Total pre-tax profit Million 34.862
VND
V | Profit after tax Million 27.630
VND

I1.2. Construction Investment Plan:

11.2.1. Dak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (Dam Heightening for
Reservoir A and Construction of Reservoir B Hydropower Plant):

Construction of Reservoir B Hydropower Plant (1.6 MW):

- Complete the land acquisition and compensation (GPMB) for the 22kV
transmission line (the final land portion of the project).

- Continue construction and equipment installation work, with the plant
expected to be completed and put into operation by October 2025.

- Estimated disbursement value: VND 18.28 billion.
11.2.2. PC3-INVEST Headquarters Project:

- Continue construction and equipment installation work, with the
headquarters expected to be completed and operational by June 2025.

- Estimated disbursement value: VND 14.28 billion.

I1.3. Purchase of Fixed Assets for Production and Business Operations:
Purchase of 01 automobile for production and business operations, valued at VND
0.8 billion.

I1.4. Corporate Governance:

To successfully implement production and business tasks, construction
investment, and improve and develop management capacity, thereby enhancing
work efficiency, the Company will focus on the following areas:

- Strengthen governance based on a risk-based approach to improve business
efficiency and increase labor productivity; promote the role of the Safety and
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Hygiene Network to proactively ensure occupational health and safety (OHS)
requirements; comply with legal regulations in the operation of hydropower plants.

- Focus on controlling compliance with procedures and regulations in
construction investment; enhance management and control to prevent issues or
errors; proactively and actively gather information from local authorities and state
management agencies; organize quality management, progress monitoring, and
capital disbursement in accordance with actual construction progress.

- Actively update the ISO 9001:2015 process system alongside implementing
the administrative reform program; perform corporate culture (VHDN) in line with
the Kaizen 5S standards, KPIs core system; continue the digital transformation task
along with IT application in management and production.

- Strengthen and develop the human resources to meet the requirements of
assigned tasks; organize periodic/rotational training for management staff and
employees; stabilize jobs and incomes for employees; improve the working
environment to enhance the reputation of the PC3-INVEST brand.



PC3 - INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMEANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 34 /Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 4 , 2025

REPORT
Regarding the Approval of the Audited Financial Report for 2024

Dear: The General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3 — Investment Joint
Stock Company

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3 — Investment Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Resolution of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders — 2024.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits the audited financial report
for 2024 for approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders./.

Recipents: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
-As above; DIRECTORS
-Copy to: Office, Accounting. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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PC3 —INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Dear: The General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock
Company

PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company would like to summarize the financial
report for 2024 (excerpted from the audited financial report for 2024).

A. Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2024
Unit: Million VND

Content As of December 31, | As of December 31,
2024 2023

I. TOTAL ASSETS 433.285,72 447.603,09
Of which:

1. Current Assets 79.000,87 67.847,23
2. Non-current Assets 354.284.85 379.755,86
II. TOTAL LIABILITIES &

EQUITY 433.285,72 447.603,09
Of which:

1. Liabilities 63.654,45 88.143,65
2. Equity 369.631,27 359.459,44

Remarks:

- The total assets of the Company as of December 31, 2024: VND 433.28
billion, a decrease of VND 14.32 billion compared to total assets as of December
31, 2023, including:

+ Current assets increased by VND 11.15 billion, mainly due to an increase in
short-term receivables (prepaid expenses to suppliers).

+ Non-current assets decreased by VND 25.47 billion due to increased
depreciation of fixed assets at Dak Pone Hydropower Plant and Dak Krong 1
Hydropower Plant.

- The total capital of the Company as of December 31, 2024: VND 433.28
billion, a decrease of VND 14.32 billion compared to total capital as of December
31, 2023, including:




+ Liabilities decreased by VND 24.49 billion compared to 2023, mainly due to
the repayment of principal for loans used in the investment of Dak Krong 1
Hydropower Plant and a reduction in other payables.

+ Equity increased by VND 10.18 billion compared to the end of 2023,
primarily due to an increase in retained earnings (profit after tax not yet distributed)
compared to the same period.

B. Business Performance Report as of December 31, 2024:
Unit: Million VND

Content Amount
1. Revenue from sales and service provision 116.730,81
2. Cost of goods sold 64.989,58
3. Gross profit from sales and service provision 51.741,23
4. Financial revenue 581,83
5. Financial expenses 2.612,07
6. Corporate management expenses 15.265,03
7. Net profit from production and business activities 34.445,95
8. Other income 4.582,74
9. Other expenses 2.647,85
10. Other profit 1.934,89
11. Total pre-tax accounting profit 36.380,84
12. Profit after corporate income tax 32.205,55
13. Basic earnings per share 861 VND/share

C. Financial Indicators Reflecting the Company's Financial Position as of

December 31, 2024
Indicator 2024
I. Liquidity Ratios
1. Current ratio 3.34 times
2. Quick ratio 3.32 times

I1. Financial Independence Ratios

1. Debt-to-total assets ratio

14.69%

2. Debt-to-equity ratio

17.22%

The debt-to-total assets ratio of 14.69% and the debt-to-equity ratio of
17.22% reflect the Company's relative financial independence. The short-term
liquidity ratios for 2024 are within acceptable limits, indicating that the Company
will be able to timely settle its short-term liabilities. The Company's receivables and
payables as of December 31, 2024, are closely monitored, with no overdue or

difficult-to-collect receivables or payables.

D. Independent Audit Opinion (ECOVIS AFA VIETNAM Audit, Valuation,




and Consulting Co., Ltd.)

"In our opinion, the attached financial statements fairly and reasonably
present, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of
December 31, 2024, as well as the results of its operations and cash flows for the
fiscal year then ended, in accordance with accounting standards, the Vietnamese
accounting system, and the relevant legal regulations regarding the preparation and
presentation of financial statements."

PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT
Management of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as "the Company”) hereby
presents its report and the accompanying audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024.

Members of the Board of Directors, the Internal Audit Committee, the Supervisory Committee and
Management during the year and on the date of this report include:

Board of Directors

Full name Position
Mr. Le Van Nghiep Chairman
Mr. Le Huy Khoi Member
Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Member
Mr. Tran Dang Hien Member
Mr. Tran Dinh Loi Member
Mr. Nguyen Trong Vinh Member

Internal Audit Committee

Full name Position
Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Head

Mr. Tran Vinh Trinh Member
Ms, Huynh Thi Thuy Duong Member

Supervisory Committee

Full name Position

Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong Head

Ms. Hoang Thi Huong Member

Mr. Vu Ngoc Thu Member

Management

Full name Position

Mr. Le Huy Khoi General Director

Mr. Tran Vinh Trinh Deputy General Director

Mr. Nguyen Duong Long Deputy General Director Dismissed on 01 July 2024

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Mr. Le Huy Khoi,
General Director.
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

MANAGEMENT’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT

The Company's management is responsible for preparing the financial statements of each period which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the results of its operations and its cash flows.
In preparing these financial statements, management is required to:

=  Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

=  Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any departures that need
to be disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

=  Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business; and

=  Design and implement the internal control system effectively for a fair preparation and presentation of the
financial statements so as to mitigate error or fraud.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and ensure that the financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.
Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing these
financial statements.

AUDITOR

The accompanying financial statements were audited by ECOVIS AFA VIETNAM Auditing — Appraisal and
Consulting Company Limited (Head office: No. 142 Xo Viet Nghe Tinh Street, Hoa Cuong Nam Ward, Hai
Chau District, Danang City, Vietnam; Telephone: (84) 0236.363.3333; Fax: (84) 0236.363.3338; Website:
www.ecovis.com/vietnam/audit).

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

In management’s opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements.

~

g onbehalf of management—u—"'ﬁ"’;‘
=)

Le Huy Khoi
General Director
Da Nang City, 25 February 2025
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ECOVIS AFA VIETNAM AUDITING - APPRAISAL AND CONSULTING CO., LTD

142 Xo Viet Nghe Tinh St., Hoa Cuong Nam Ward, Hai Chau Dist., Danang City, Vietnam
! ’ r *‘
AFA VI ETNAM Tel: +84 236 363 3333 | Fax: +84 236 363 3338 | Email: info@ecovis.com.vn

_’£ E C O v I S % CONG TY TNHH KIEM TOAN - THAM DINH GIA VA TU VAN ECOVIS AFA VIET NAM
QY

No: 22/2025/BCKT-E.AFA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To: Shareholders
Board of Directors and Management
PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company
(hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) prepared on 25 February 2025 as set out from page 5 to page 38,
which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, and the income statement, cash-flow statement
for the financial year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, and Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

& .eas

LR WL T T ]



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
financial year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting and relevant legislation as to the preparation and presentation of financial statements.
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Tran Thi Nhu Phuong Le Van Hoang

Audit Director Auditor

Audit Practice Registration Certificate Audit Practice Registration Certificate
No. 2293-2023-240-1 No.: 5399-2025-240-1

Authorized person

ECOVIS AFA VIETNAM Auditing — Appraisal and Consulting Company Limited
Danang City, 25 February 2025
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

Form B 01 - DN
(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
As at As at
ASSETS Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 79,000,867,628 67,847,233,120
I. Cash and cash equivalents 110 | 4.1 15,070,649,584 21,799,771,938
1. Cash 111 570,649,584 199,771,938
2. Cash equivalents 112 14,500,000,000 21,600,000,000
1. Current financial investments 120 20,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
1. Trading securities 121 - -
2. Held to maturity investments 123 | 4.2 20,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Ill. Current account receivables 130 37,126,533,042 25,209,526,650
1. Trade receivables 131 4.3 22,997,272,603 23,724,105,735
2. Advances to suppliers 132 | 44 12,804,997,261 317,812,119
3. Other current receivables 136 | 4.5 1,324,263,178 1,167,608,796
1V. Inventories 140 | 4.6 424,547,630 131,143,390
1. Inventories 141 424 547 630 131,143,380
2. Provsion for decline in value of inventories 149 - 2
V. Other current assets 150 6,379,137,372 5,706,791,142
1. Current prepayments 161 | 4.7 325,873,789 330,524,127
2. Value added tax deductible 152 6,053,263,583 5,110,180,782
3. Tax and other receivables from the state budget 153 | 4.15 - 266,086,233
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 354,284,850,456 379,755,864,318
I. Non-current account receivables 210 - 777,332,308
1. Other non-current receivables 216 | 4.5 - 777,332,308
2. Provision for doubtful non-current receivables 219 - -
Il. Fixed assets 220 327,244,617,453 364,051,511,173
1. Tangible fixed assets 221 | 4.8 322,278,924,050 359,064,194,550
Cost 222 654,522,945,834 654,108,239,591
Accumulated depreciation 223 (332,244,021,784)| (295,044,045,041)
2. Intangible fixed assets 227 | 4.9 4,965,693,403 4,987,316,623
Cost 228 5,142,799,409 5,142,799,409
Accumulated amortisation 229 (177,106,006) (155,482,786)
Ill. Investment property 230 - -
1V. Non-current assets in progess 240 22,268,786,691 10,636,928,445
1. Non-current work in process 241 - -
2. Construction in progress 242 | 4.10 22,268,786,691 10,636,928,445
V. Non-current financial investments 250 - -
VI. Other non-current assets 260 4,771,446,312 4,290,092,392
1. Non-current prepayments 261 | 4.7 2,084,137,577 1,668,767,669
2. Non-current resened spare parts 263 2,687,308,735 2,621,324, 723
TOTAL ASSETS 270 433,285,718,084 447,603,097,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fi..ancial statements



PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

Form B 01 - DN

(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

As at As at

RESOURCES Code | Notes 31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
C. LIABILITIES 300 63,654,454,219 88,143,654,084
I. Current liabilities 310 23,654,454,219 38,143,654,084
1. Trade payables 311 | 4.1 1,081,295,614 864,306,298
2. Taxes and amounts payable to the state budget 313 | 4.15 5,265,783,633 3,961,984,048
3. Payables to employees 314 | 412 8,382,976,353 11,090,451,194
4. Accrued expenses 315 | 4.13 2,190,179,990 109,996,034
5. Other current payables 319 | 414 2,793,206,909 19,174,801,809
6. Bonus and welfare fund 322 3,941,011,720 2,942,113,801
Il. Non-current liabilities 330 40,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
1. Other non-current payables 337 - -
2. Non-current loans and obligations under finance leases| 338 | 4.16 40,000,000,000 50,000,000,000
D. OWNER'S EQUITY 400 369,631,263,865| 359,459,443,354
l. Equity 410 | 4.17 369,631,263,865| 359,459,443,354
1. Owner's contributed capital 411 333,398,910,000( 333,398,910,000
Ordinary shares carrying woting rights 411a 333,398,910,000] 333,398,910,000
Preference shares 411b - -

2. Share premiums 412 (35,000,000) (35,000,000)
3. Investment and development fund 418 1,131,301,456 1,131,301,456
4. Retained eamings 421 35,136,052,409 24,964,231,898
Beginning accumulated retained earnings 421a 2,930,498,523 3,482,076,726
Retained earmnings of the current year 421b 32,205,553,886 21,482,155,172

1. Other capital and funds 430 - -
“RESOURCES 440 433,285,718,084| 447,603,097,438

Le Huy Khoi
General Director

Da Nang City, 25 February 2025

Nguyen Minh Hoai
Chief Accountant

Diep Le Truc Xuyen

Preparer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stats.:1ents
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

INCOME STATEMENT

Form B 02 - DN

(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND

ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
1. Revenue 01 5.1 116,730,807,384 137,853,540,657
2. Deductions 02 - =
3. Net revenue 10 116,730,807,384 137,853,540,657
4. Cost of sales 11 5.2 64,989,5682,344 72,116,878,629
5. Gross profit 20 51,741,225,040 65,736,662,028
6. Financial income 21 5.3 581,763,004 1,673,729,041
7. Financial expense 22 54 2,612,006,878 6,740,532,328
Of which, interest expense 23 2,567,589,041 6,740,532,328

8. Selling expense 25 B -
9. General and administration expense 26 5.5 15,265,033,270 17,857,693,020
10. Operating profit/(loss) 30 34,445,947,896 42.812,165,721
11. Other income 31 56 4,582,735,535 8,074
12. Other expense 32 57 2,647,847,835 756,986
13. Net other income/(loss) 40 1,934,887,700 (748,912)
14. Accounting profit/(loss) before taxation 50 36,380,835,596 42,811,416,809
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51 5.8 4,175,281,710 4,659,316,137
16. Deferred corporate income tax expense 52 - -
17. Net profit/(loss) after taxation 60 32,205,553,886 38,152,100,672
18. Basic earnings per share 70 |4.17.5 861 983
19. Diluted eamings per share 71 4.17.6 861 983

Ll

g

Le Huy Khoi
Director
Da Nang City, 25 February 2025

Nguyen Minh Hoai
Chief Accountant

Diep Le Truc Xuyen

Preparer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements



PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC

Form B 03 - DN

dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
(Indirect method)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Net profit /(loss) before taxes 01 36,380,835,596 42,811,416,809
2. Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation 02 37,221,599,963 38,622,577,193
Foreign exchange gains/losses from revaluation of 04 (94,010) (54,003)
foreign currency monetary items
Gains/losses from investment 05 (579,096,533) (1,672,792,112)
Interest expense 06 2,567,589,041 6,740,532,328
3. Operating profit /(loss) before adjustments to 08 75,590,834,057 86,501,680,215
working capital
Increase or decrease in accounts receivable 09 501,571,377 1,262,770,693
Increase or decrease in inventories 10 (359,388,252) 520,672,844
Increase or decrease in accounts payable 11 (672,297,891) (2,625,410,477)
(excluding interest expense and CIT payable)
Increase or decrease prepaid expenses 12 (410,719,570) 160,552,696
Interest paid 14 (2,565,671,233)| (6,900,289,634)
Corporate income tax paid 15 (2,671,018,388) (4,462,829,430)
Other cash inflows from operating activities 16 26,500,000 35,000,000
Other cash outflows from operating activities 17 (4,391,389,956) (4,956,010,500)
Net cash from operating activities 20 65,148,420,144 69,536,136,407
1l. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets and other 21 (24,577,524,320) (1,641,698,515)
long-term assets
2. Loans to other entities and payments for 23 (24,000,000,000)| (28,000,000,000)
purchase of debt instruments of other entities
3. Repayments from borrowers and proceeds 24 19,000,000,000 32,500,000,000
from sales of debts instruments of other entities
4. Interest and dividends received 27 765,374,612 1,717,489,519
Net cash from investing activities 30 (28,812,149,708) 4,575,793,004
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements 8
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

Form B 03 - DN

(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

(Indirect method)

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
ITEMS Code | Notes Year 2024 Year 2023
11l. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 6.1 2 50,000,000,000
2. Repayment of borrowings 34 6.2 (10,000,000,000)| (105,966,620,799)
3. Dividends paid 36 (33,065,486,800)| (36,274,151,740)
Net cash from financing activities 40 (43,065,486,800)| (92,240,772,539)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH 50 (6,729,216,364)| (18,128,843,128)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 60 21,798,771,938 39,928,561,063
Impact of exchange rate fluctuation 61 94,010 54,003
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR | 70 15,070,649,584 21,799,771,938
~__'____.—-—'-'-.-.-_-______-_‘

SOb HHY

Le Huy Khoi Nguyen Minh Hoai

General Director
Da Nang City, 25 February 2025

Chief Accountant

Diep Le Truc Xuyen

Preparer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these saparate financial statements
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

1.

11.

1.2

1.3.

14.

Form B 09 - DN
(Issued under the Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 by Ministry of Finance)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CORPORATE INFORMATION
Structure of ownership

PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) was established
based on the equitization of the Management Board of Medium and Small Hydropower Projects. The
Company is an independently accounting entity, operating under Business Registration Certificate No.
3203001787 dated 2 January 2008, issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Da Nang
City, the Law on Enterprises, the Company's Charter, and other relevant legal regulations currently in
force. Since its establishment, the Company has amended its Business Registration Certificate 12
times, with the most recent amendment on 11 January 2025, under Business Registration Certificate
No. 0400589162.

The Company was approved for listing its common shares on the Hanoi Stock Exchange under
Decision No. No. 828/QD-SGDHN dated 14 December 2016, issued by the Hanoi Stock Exchange,
with the stock code PIC. The first trading day of the PIC stock code was 9 January 2017 (as approved
by the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Notification No. 1356/TB-SGDHN dated 27 December 2016).

The charter capital as stipulated in the Business Registration Certificate is VND 333,398,910,000.

The Company's registered head office is at 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da
Nang City, Vietnam.

The number of employees as at 31 December 2024 was 67 (31 December 2023: 67).
Business field

Investing in power generation projects, producing and trading electricity.

Operating industry and principal activities

Under the Business Registration Certificate, the main Company’s business activities comprise:

= Construction of other civil engineering projects. Details: Investing in power generation projects.
Investing under the Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) madel for transportation and industrial projects.
Constructing and trading in houses and office rentals. Constructing and installing irrigation works,
hydropower projects, transportation works, telecommunications infrastructure, power
transmission and distribution lines, substations, and water supply and drainage systems;

®  Architectural and engineering activities and related technical consultancy. Details: Consulting on
investment project formulation, design development, and supervision of civil, industrial, irrigation,
hydropower, transportation, and power grid construction projects;

®  Electric power generation, transmission and distribution. Details: Production and trading of
electrical energy;

= Other specialized construction activities. Details: Dredging of reservoirs associated with
hydropower projects.

Normal operating cycle

The Company’s normal operating cycle is carried out for a time period of 12 months.

10




PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

1.5.

1.6.

21.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

3.1.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The Company’s structure
The Company'’s has 2 dependent units as at 31 December 2024 were as follows:

Name Address

Branch of PC3 - Investment Joint  Mang Den Village, Mang Den Town, Kon Plong District, Kon
Stock Company in Kon Tum Tum Province, Vietnam

Branch of PC3 - Investment Joint  Huc Nghi Village, Huc Nghi Commune, Da Krong District,
Stock Company in Quang Tri Quang Tri Province, Vietnam

Statement of Comparability of Information in Financial statements

The comparative figures are those of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Accounting standards, accounting system

The accompanying financial statements, expressed in Vietnamese Dong (“VND"), are prepared in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
prevailing accounting regulations in Vietnam.

The accompanying separate financial statements are not intended to present the financial position,
results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam.

Forms of accounting records

The form of accounting records applied in the Company is the General Journal.

Financial year

The Company'’s financial year is from 01 January to 31 December.

Reporting and functional currency

The Company maintains its accounting records in VND.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that impact the carrying value of certain assets and liabilities, contingent assets and liabilities reported
in the notes as well as revenues and expenses for the financial year ended 31 December 2024.
Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of all relevant information

available at the date when the financial statements are prepared, this does not prevent actual figures
differing from estimates.

11
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

3.2

3.3.

34.

3.5.

3.6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded, on initial recognition, in the reporting currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the reporting currency and
the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. The exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise. At the end of the
reporting year, monetary items excluding advances to suppliers, prepaid expenses, and unearned
revenues, which are denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the closing rate and resultant
exchange differences resulting from the reporting after offset are recognised in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at bank, cash in transit and current
investments for a period not exceeding 3 months or highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Financial investments

Held to maturity investments

Held to maturity investments comprise held to maturity investments to earn periodical profits and other
held to maturity investments.

If there is any certain evidence that part or all the investments are irrecoverable, impairment losses
are recognised as a finance expense in the current year.

Account receivables
Recognition method

Account receivables are stated at the carrying amounts of trade receivables and other receivables
less provisions for doubtful debts.

Provision for doubtful debts

As of the date of preparing the financial statements, provision for doubtful debt is recognised for past-
due accounts receivable and for accounts receivable where circumstances indicate that they might not
be recoverable when due at the level as guided in prevailing regulations. The determination of the
overdue period of a doubtful receivable to be provisioned is based on the principal repayment period
according to the original sale contract, excluding the debt extension between the parties.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of provision for doubtful debts
is recorded as a general and administrative expense in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventory measurement

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The costs of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs
incurred in bringing inventories to their present location and condition. The cost of work in progress

and finished goods includes materials, direct labour and attributable production overheads based on
normal levels of activity.

12



PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

3.7.

3.8.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, non-reimbursable taxes and duties,
and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of inventories. Trade
discounts and sales rebates on substandard and obsolete goods purchased are deducted from the
costs of purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Method of accounting for inventories

Inventories are measured using the weighted average method and are recorded under the perpetual
inventory method.

Provision for decline in value of inventories

As of the date of preparing the financial statements, provision is recognised for obsolete, slow-moving
and defective inventory items and an excess of the cost of inventories over their net realisable value.

The difference between the required balance and the existing balance of the provision for a decline in
value of inventories is included in cost of sales in the income statement.

Inventories are written down to net realizable value item by item. For services being rendered,
provision is made in respect of each service for which a separate selling price is charged.

Non-current reserved spare parts

As at 31 December 2023, and 31 December 2024, the balances of non-current reserved spare parts
reflect the value of maintenance spare parts required for technical maintenance at Dak Pone
Hydropower Plant and Da Krong 1 Hydropower Plant.

Tangible fixed asset

Tangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Tangible fixed asset recognition

Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at their cost. The cost of purchased tangible fixed assets
comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their present
location and working condition for their intended use. Accessories added to fixed assets when
purchased are recognised separately at their fair values and deducted from the historical cost of the
respective tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation and amortisation

The costs of fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Year 2024
= Buildings, structures 15— 30 years
= Machinery and equipment 05 — 20 years
= Motor vehicles 06 — 30 years
= Office equipment 03 — 05 years

For machinery, equipment, and transmission facilities at Dak Pone Hydropower Plant, including
hydropower equipment, pressure pipss, transmission lines, and step-up transformer stations, the
Company depreciates these assets over their estimated useful lives using the units-of-production
method.

13
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PC3 -

INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

3.9.

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Intangible fixed asset recognition

The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises the total amount of expense incurred by the Company
to acquire an asset at the time the asset is put into operation for its intended use.

Accounting principles for intangible fixed assets

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at their costs less accumulated amortisation.
Indefinite land use rights are not amortised.

Computer software

Computer software is not an indispensable component of hardware and is recognised as an intangible
asset and depreciated over its useful life.

The estimated useful lives of computer software are as follows:

Year 2024
» Computer software 5-10 years

Leases
Leases classification

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Construction in progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, rental or administrative purposes, or for
purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost. Cost includes professional fees, and for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs dealt with in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Prepayments

Prepayments are classified as current and non-current based on their original term. Prepayments
mainly comprise costs of tools and supplies, Insurance fees, etc., which are amortised over the period
for which they are paid or the period in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these
expenses.

14
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The following expenses are recognised as prepayments and amortised to the income statement:

= Tools and supplies are amortised to the income statement using the straight-line method for no
more than 3 years;

= QOther prepaid expenses: Based on the nature and volume of each expense, the company selects
appropriate methods and criteria for allocation during the period when the expected economic
benefits are generated.

3.13. Liabilities

Liabilities are classified into trade payables and other payables based on the following rules: Trade
payables represent those arising from purchase and sale related transactions of goods, services or
assets and the seller is independent of the buyer; the remaining payables are classified as other
payables.

Liabilities are also classified according to the maturity date, the remaining term from the date of the
financial statements, original currency, and each creditor.

Liabilities are recognised at no less than the payment obligation.

3.14. Borrowing costs

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets until the assets are put into use or sale.

Investment income earned on temporary investment of borrowings is deducted from the cost of the
respective assets.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the consolidated income statement when
incurred.

3.15. Accrued expenses

3.16.

Accrued expenses represent expenses that will be paid in the future for goods or services received
but not yet paid due to lack of invoices or accounting documents. These expenses are recognised as
operating expenses of the reporting year.

Owners’ equity

The owners’ contributed equity

The owners' contributed equity is recognised when contributed.

Share premiums

Share premiums are recognised as the difference between the issue price and the par value of shares,
and the difference between the re-purchase price and the re-issue price of treasury shares.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability at the date of declaring dividends.
Reserves

Reserves are created at certain percentages of profit after tax as prescribed in the Company’s charter.

15
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Rinh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

3.21.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Retained earnings

Net profit after income tax can be distributed to shareholders after the distribution is approved by the
General annual meeting of shareholders and reserves are created in accordance with the Company’s
Charter and legal regulations in Vietnam.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from selling goods

Revenue from selling goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
In most cases, revenue is recognised when transferring the risks and rewards of ownership to the
buyer.

Revenue involving the rendering of services

Revenue of a transaction involving the rendering of services is recognised when the outcome of this
transaction can be estimated reliably. When a transaction involving the rendering of services is
attributable to several periods, each period's revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of
completion at the end of the reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales and services provided represents total costs of goods, services, manufacturing costs of
construction products (for construction entities) which are sold in the year in accordance with the
matching principle. Abnormal amounts of production costs of inventories are recognised immediately
in cost of sales.

Finance expense

Finance expenses represent all expenses incurred in the reporting year which mainly include borrowing
costs and losses from exchange rates.

General and administrative expense

General and administrative expenses represent common expenses, which include payroll costs for
office employees’ (salaries, wages, allowances, etc.); social insurance, health insurance, trade union
fees and unemployment insurance; stationery expenses, material expenses, depreciation expenses
of fixed assets used for administration activities; land rental, license tax; provision for doubtful debts;
utility services (electricity expenses, water expenses, phone, fax, warranty expenses, etc.); sundry
expenses (entertainment, customer conference, etc.).

Taxation
Corporate income tax
Current corporate income tax expense

* |ncome from the sale of commercial electricity generated by the Dak Pone Hydropower Plant in
Kon Tum Province is subject to a tax rate of 10% for 15 years from the commencement of business
operations (from 2010 to 2024). The proiect is exempt from corporate income tax for 4 years (from
2010 to 2013) and receives a 50% reducuon in payable tax for the following 9 years (from 2014 to
2022) as it qualifies as an investment project in an area with exceptionally difficult socio-economic
conditions. These incentives are stipulated in Circular No. 130/2008/TT-BTC dated December 26,
2008, issued by the Ministry of Finance.
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

3.22.

3.23.

3.24,

3.25.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
» QOther activities: are applicable in accordance with the prevailing regulations.
Value added tax

The goods sold and services rendered by the Company are subject to value added tax at the following
rates: :

= Applying a tax rate of 10% on commercial electricity products. The Company is eligible for a VAT
rate of 8% on commercial electricity from 1 January 2024, to 30 June 2024, as stipulated in Decree
No. 94/2023/ND-CP dated 28 December 2023, and from 1 July 2024, to 31 December 2024, as
stipulated in Decree No. 72/2024/ND-CP dated 30 June 2024, issued by the Government.;

= QOther activities: are applicable in accordance with the prevailing regulations.

Other taxes
Other taxes are applicable in accordance with the prevailing tax laws in Vietnam.

The tax reports of the Company will be inspected by the Tax Department. Application of the laws and
regulations on tax to different transactions can be interpreted by many ways; therefore, the tax
amounts presented in the financial statements can be amended in accordance with the Tax
Department’s final assessment for the Company.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year, excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Company and held as
treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(after adjusted for bonus and welfare funds), by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year and total ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion,
excluding ordinary shares bought back by the Company and held as treasury shares.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that is engaged either in producing or
providing related products or services (business segment), or in producing or providing products or
services within a particular economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Refer to section 7 “Segment Reporting” in Notes to the financial Statements.
Related parties

Related parties are individuals or entities that have the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, to control the Company or are controlled by, or are subject to common control with the
Company. Associates, individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the
Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, key management personnel,
including directors and officers of the Company and close family members or associates of such
individuals are also considered to be related parties.
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE BALANCE SHEET

4.1. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at
Foreign 31 Dec. 2024 Foreign 01 Jan. 2024
currencies VND currencies VND
Cash in hand 149,474,522 22,525,834
Cash at banks 421,175,062 177,246,104
+ VND 419,245,724 175,410,776
+ USD 76.06 # 1,929,338 76.06 # 1,835,328
Deposits with term less
than 3 months (VND) 14,500,000,000 21,600,000,000
Total 15,070,649,584 21,799,771,938
4.2. Financial investments

Term deposits

Total 20,000,000,000

As at 31 Dec. 2024
VND

As at 01 Jan. 2024

Cost amount

20,000,000,000  20,000,000,000

Cost

15,000,000,000

amount

15,000,000,000

20,000,000,000

15,000,000,000

15,000,000,000

4.3. Current trade receivables

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

Central Power Corporation

22,997,272,603

23,724,105,735

Total

22,997,272,603

23,724,105,735

In which: Trade receivables from related parties -
Refer to Notes 8

22,997,272,603

23,724,105,735
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.4. Current advances to suppliers

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND

Company 1,949,507,764 -

I.D.1 Joint Stock Company 2,550,061,407 -

Nam Viet Energy Technology Company Limited 3,382,039,998 -

6.3 Joint Stock Company 2,830,631,0860 -
Others 2,092,757,032 317,812,119
Total 12,804,997,261 317,812,119

4.5. Current other receivables
As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Value Provision Value Provision
Current
Accrued interest 117,458,906 303,736,985 -
Receivables from PIT 478,841,738 691,425,811 -
Other receivables 203,094,053 172,446,000 -
Deposits 524,868,481 - -
Total 1,324,263,178 1,167,608,796 -
Non-Curent
Deposits - 777,332,308 -
Total - 777,332,308 -
In which: Other receivables
from related parties - Refer

to Notes 8 24,000,000 9,500,000 =
19



PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.6. Inventories

As at 31 Dec. 2024 As at 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Cost Provision Cost Provision
Raw materials 424 547 630 = 131,143,390 “
Total 424,547,630 - 131,143,390 -

There were no slow moving and obsolescent inventories at the year-end.

There were no inventories pledged as security for liabilities at the year-end.

4.7. Prepayments

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
Current:

Inspection costs, insurance, and other expenses 325,873,789 330,524,127
Total 325,873,789 330,524,127
Non-current:

Tools and supplies 401,524,758 679,256,536

Repairing of fixed assets and other expenses 1,682,612,819 989,511,133
Total 2,084,137,577 1,668,767,669

20



T4

'G$8'920'068'SL ANA PI[BI0} 8sn Ul [|3s Ing pajeroaidap Alinj sjasse paxly 8|qibue) jo 3802 [edloisiy 8y L

‘Aunoes ueo| se pabebuow/pabpald sem Z8y'608'S16'002 ANA Bul||elo) sjesse paxiy 8|qibue) Jo anjea 3ood jau pua-ieaA Jo Junowe ay |

0S0'vZ6°'8L2'22¢  ¥90'FLL'EYL 095°€60¥50°8 ¥69°55P°'6£6°GS Z€L092 eyl 8se
0SS'¥61 Y9065  2LL'PP9'98 6€6°299'Ge9'8 £8L'ere'er6 0L 950'6£9'801'6.2
¥8.L°L20'vbZ e 281°808°LZS eve'ooL'9lz'zL ZWWLLS LZL'eY) Ly8°G66°LLL 69
€¥.'9/6'661 L€ 80.L°,52'GC 6.£'¥20°1L02°L LGS ‘¥86°000'S L S0L'0LL'2L6'02
LP0'SY0'bir0'G62  ¥.P'08S 205 ¥96'GL9°SL0"LL 198°2E€5'92L PEL ZyL'S8Z'66L'8Y1
v£8'SP6°225'¥S9  9¥Z‘TT6°0L9 €06°€6.°0L2°02 901°€.6°999°G02 6.5°9SZ V16 L2V
(£52'0L¥'962) - - (8€5'208'2) (612'899'¢62)
000°LLL LLL 0002218 000°05¥'629 - .
16S'6£2'80L'¥S9  9¥C'S6L '68S €08'EreE LVO'6L ¥¥9'611'699'602 86.'¥26'L0Z'82F
aNA aNA aNA anNA anNA
|ejol jusawdinba EETRITTETY juswdinba salnonis
22140 10300 pue Aisuiyosep ‘sBulp|ing

(A3NNILNOD) SLNIWIALYLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL SILON

v202 223 LS e sy

¥20Z "Uer Lo e sy
:anjen 300q 19N

2oz '0eQ Ll e sy

uonelsaldeq
ycoe "uer Lo e sy

:uonetsaidap paleinunTdy

veoeg 098Q LE e sy
S9SB3108p 18YID)
@seyoinq

#¢0¢ "Uer Lo je sv
180D

suiag|

sjosse poxiy a|qibue] gy

WeulsiA A bueN eq 3ouisig neyy leH ‘pIEAA UBNUL Yuig ‘Ue] Anq V8. 'SSaIppy

ANVdINOD MOO0LS LNIOr LNJIWLSIANI - €3d



PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.9. Intangible fixed assets

Land use Computer
Total
Items rights software -
VND VND VND
Cost:
As at 01 Jan. 2024 4,857,693,636 285,105,773 5,142,799,409
Purchase - - -

As at 31 Dec. 2024 4,857,693,636 285,105,773 5,142,799,409

Accumulated amortisation:

As at 01 Jan. 2024 - 155,482,786 155,482,786
Amortisation - 21,623,220 21,623,220
As at 31 Dec. 2024 - 177,106,006 177,106,006

Net book value:
As at 01 Jan. 2024

As at 31 Dec. 2024

129,622,987 4,987,316,623
107,999,767 4,965,693,403

4,857,693,636
4,857,693,636

Long-term land use rights at Lot 7 + Lot 8, Zone B2-54, Hoa Xuan Riverside Eco-Urban Area — Phase
2, Hoa Xuan Ward, Cam Le District, Da Nang City, as per Land Use Rights, House Ownership, and p
Other Assets Attached to Land Certificate No. CH 636281, issued by the Da Nang Department of 4
Natural Resources and Environment on 11 October 2017. Ly

The historical cost of intangible fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use totalled VND 68,873,653.

There were no intangible fixed assets pledged/mortgaged as loan security at the year-end.

4.10. Construction in progress

Hydropower Plant Project Dak Pone

As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

(raising Dam A and constructing the plant complex at Dam B)

13,047,894,983

7,426,893,431

PC3-INVEST Office Building Project 6,775,087,250 784,430,556
Tan Lap Wind Power Project 2,445,804,458 2,425,604,458
Total 22,268,786,691 10,636,928,445
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.11. Current trade payables

As at 31 Dec. 2024

As at 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND
Value Payable value Value Payable value
I.D.1 Joint Stock Company 310,029,219 310,029,219 - -
Tri Dung General Trading - Senice
Construction Co., Ltd. 568,228,881 568,228,881 - -
Nang Luong Xanh Construction and
Consultant Joint Stock Company - - 303,505,325 303,505,325
A.P.E.N Construction Design
Consultancy Joint Stock Company - - 352,743,531 352,743,531
Others 203,037,514 203,037,514 208,057,442 208,057,442
Total 1,081,295,614 1,081,295,614 864,306,298 864,306,298
4.12. Payables to employees
As at As at
31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

Salaries payable to employees

Total

4.13. Current accrued expenses

8,382,976,353

11,090,451,194

8,382,976,353

11,090,451,194

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

VND VND

Interest payable 52,739,726 50,821,918
Consulting fees for selling Certified Emission

Reductions (CERSs) 2,122,722,759 -

Others 14,717,505 59,174,116

Total 2,190,179,990 109,996,034
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.14. Other payables

Dividends payable
Others

Total

In which, Other current payables to related parties
- Refer to Notes 8

As at
31 Dec. 2024
VND

As at
01 Jan. 2024
VND

2,698,419,140
94,787,769

19,093,960,440
80,841,369

2,793,206,909

19,174,801,808

13,034,450,000
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.17.2. Details of owners’ equity

Central Power Corporation
Other shareholders

Total

4.17.3. Capital transactions with owners

Beginning balance
Capital contribution in the year
Capital redemption in the year

Ending balance

4.17.4. Shares

As at
31 Dec. 2024
VND

As at
01 Jan. 2024
VND

246,989,600,000
86,409,310,000

246,989,600,000
86,409,310,000

333,398,910,000

333,398,910,000

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

333,398,910,000

333,398,910,000

333,398,910,000

333,398,910,000

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024

Number of shares registered for issue 33,339,891 33,339,891

Number of shares sold to public 33,339,891 33,339,891

- Ordinary shares 33,339,891 33,339,891
- Preference shares (Classified as owners’ equity) = =
Number of shares repurchased (Treasury shares) - -
- Ordinary shares i 5
- Preference shares (Classified as owners’ equity) — =
Number of shares outstanding 33,339,891 33,339,891

- Ordinary shares 33,339,891 33,339,891
- Preference shares (Classified as owners’ equity) - -

Par value per outstanding share: VND 10,000 per share
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.17.5. Basic earnings per share

Net profit after tax

Adjusted for (interim) distribution to bonus and
welfare fund

Profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders
Awerage Number of shares outstanding in year

Basic earnings per share

4.17.6. Diluted earnings per share

Net profit after tax

Adjusted for (interim) distribution to bonus and
welfare fund

Earnings for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period

Number of common shares expected to be issued

Number of shares to calculate diluted eamnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

32,205,553,886

3,502,569,938

38,152,100,672

5,363,787,875

28,702,983,948

32,788,312,797

33,339,891 33,339,891
861 983

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

32,205,553,886

3,502,569,938

38,152,100,672

5,363,787,875

28,702,983,948

32,788,312,797

33,339,891 33,339,891
33,339,891 33,339,891
861 983

Net profit after tax used to calculate basic earnings, diluted earnings per shares for 2024 has been
deducted by the interim bonus and welfare fund according to the plan stated in the Resolution of
General Meeting of Shareholders No. 54/NQ-DHDCPD dated 16 April 2024. These figures may be
revised following the official approval of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

The allocation to the bonus and welfare fund for 2023 has been restated according to the Resolution
of General Meeting of Shareholders for the year 2024 regarding the distribution of 2023 profits. As a
result, the restated basic earnings per share/diluted earnings per share for 2023 is VND 983 per share
(previously reported as VND 1,040 per share in the prior year's financial statements).

4.17.7. Dividends

According to the Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders No. 54/NQ-BDHDCD
dated 16 April 2024, approved the distribution of 2023 dividends in cash at a rate of 10% of charter
capital (equivalent to VND 33,339,891,000). This includes an interim payment of 5% (equivalent to
VND 16,669,945,500) that was distributed in 2023.

According to the Board of Directors’ Resolution No. 91/QB-HDQT dated 15 July 2024, the Board of
Directors approved the payment of the remaining 2023 dividends in cash at a rate of 5% (equivalent
to VND 16,669,945,500). The Iast registration date is 29 August 2024, and payment will be made from
30 September 2024.




PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.17.8. Corporate funds

4.18.

5.1.

5.2.

As at 01 Jan. 2024
Additions
Utilisations

As at 31 Dec. 2024

Off balance sheet items

Foreign currencies:
+ USD

Development
investment fund
VND

1,131,301,456

1,131,301,456

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue from selling goods and rendering services

Rewenue from commercial electricity sales

Total

Of which revenue from selling goods and rendering
senices to related parties — Refer to Note 8

Cost of sales

Cost of goods sold for commercial electricity

Total

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
76.06 76.06

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

116,730,807,384

137,853,540,657

116,730,807,384

137,853,540,657

116,730,807,384

Year 2024
VND

137,853,540,657

Year 2023
VND

64,989,582,344

72,116,878,629

64,989,582,344

72,116,878,629
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

5.3.

54.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Finance income

Deposit interest
Foreign exchange gains in payment
Foreign exchange gains from revaluation at year end

Total

Financial expense

Interest expense
Foreign exchange losses in payment

Total

5.5. General and administrative expense

Staff expenses
Depreciation expense
Other expenses

Total

5.6. Otherincome

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
579,096,533 1,672,784,038
2,572,461 891,000
94,010 54,003
581,763,004 1,673,729,041
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

2,567,589,041
44,417,837

6,740,532,328

2,612,006,878

6,740,532,328

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

9,780,525,687
488,603,736
4,995,903,847

11,119,714,546
98,186,968
6,639,791,506

15,265,033,270

17,857,693,020

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Disposal of fixed assets - 8,074
Income from selling Certified Emission Reductions

(CERs) 4,553,085,535 -

Other incomes 29,650,000 -

Total 4,582,735,535 8,074
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.7. Other expense

Accounting profit before tax for the period
- Tax-incentivized activity (Dak Pone Hydropower Plant)
- Non tax-incentivized activity
Add: Adjustments according to CIT law
- Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
+ Tax-incentivized activity
+ Non tax-incentivized activity
Less: Adjustments according to CIT law
- Interest on exchange rate differences due to revaluation
at the end of this year's period
+ Tax-incentivized activity
+ Non tax-incentivized activity
Total taxable income
- Tax-incentivized activity
- Non tax-incentivized activity
Corporte income tax
+ Tax-incentivized activity
+ Non tax-incentivized activity
Corporate income tax
50% Reduction in Corporate Income Tax (CIT Incentive)

Current corporate income tax expense

In which

- CIT expenses are calculated on annual taxable income
current

- Adjust previous years' corporate income tax expenses to
this years current income tax expenses

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Expenses related to selling Certified Emission
Reductions (CERs) 2,642,799,310 -
Other expenses 5,048,525 756,986
Total 2,647,847,835 756,986

5.8. Current corporate income tax expense

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

36,380,835,596
32,696,066,561
3,684,769,035
1,072,824,386
1,072,824, 386
648,960,826
423,863,560

37,453,659,982
33,345,027,387
4,108,632, 595

10%
20%
4,156,229,258

42,811,416,809
40,373,100,924
2,438,315,885
998,678,743
998,678,743
698,238,574
300,440,169
54,003

54,003

33,202

20,801
43,810,041,549
41,071,306,297
2,738,735,252

10%
20%
4,654,877,680

4,175,281,710

4,659,316,137

4,156,229,258

19,052,452

4,654,877,680

4,438,457
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5.9. Production and business costs by element

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

Material expense
Employee expense
Depreciation expense
Senvce expense
Other expenses

1,232,956,732
20,182,785,184
37,221,599,963
2,220,751,205
19,396,522,530

3,549,073,951
23,080,903,388
38,622,577,193
2,243,640,580
22,478,376,537

Total 80,254,615,614

89,974,571,649

6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR ITEMS SHOWN IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

6.1. Cash receipts from loans in the year

Year 2023
VND

50,000,000,000

50,000,000,000

Year 2024
VND
Cash receipts from loans under normal contracts 7
Total -
6.2. Cash repayments of principal amounts borrowed
Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

Cash repayment of principal amounts under

normal contracts 10,000,000,000

105,966,620,799

Total 10,000,000,000

105,966,620,799

7. SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Company divides its operations nationwide into key departments

according to geographical regions as follows:
®  Headquarters

®  Quang Tri Branch

= Kon Tum Branch
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

8. RELATED PARTIES

List of related parties

Central Power Corporation

Central Electrical Testing Company Limited

Khanh Hoa Power Joint-stock company

Kon Tum Power Company

Central Power Information Technology Company —
Central Power Corporation

Central Power Electronic Measurement Equipment
Manufacturing Center

7. Board of Directors and management

ERl 03 8.

o

At the end of the reporting year, the balances with related parties are as follows:

Trade receivables
Central Power Corporation

Total - Refer to Note 4.3

Other receivables
Central Power Corporation

Total - Refer to Note 4.5

Other payables
Central Power Corporation
Khanh Hoa Power Joint-stock company

Total - Refer to Note 4.13

Relationship

Parent Company

Same of the Parent Company
Same of the Parent Company
Unit under the Parent Company
Unit under the Parent Company

Unit under the Parent Company

Key management personnel

As at
31 Dec. 2024
VND

As at
01 Jan. 2024
VND

22,997,272,603

23,724,105,735

22,997,272,603 23,724,105,735
As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND
24,000,000 9,500,000
24,000,000 9,500,000

As at As at

31 Dec. 2024 01 Jan. 2024
VND VND

12,349,480,000
684,970,000

13,034,450,000
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the reporting year, the Company has had related party transactions as follows:

Sale of goods
Central Power Corporation

Total - Refer to Note 5.1

Purchase of goods

Central Power Corporation

Central Electrical Testing Company Limited

Kon Tum Power Company

Central Power Information Technology Company —
Central Power Corporation

Central Power Electronic Measurement Equipment
Manufacturing Center

Year 2024
VND

Year 2023
VND

116,730,807,384

137,853,540,657

Total

Dividend payment

116,730,807,384 137,853,540,657
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
61,743,027 113,418,174
332,960,400 236,118,616
65,348,292 65,348,292
56,547,847 -
72,000,000 -
588,599,566 414,885,082
Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Central Power Corporation
Khanh Hoa Power Joint-stock company

Total

12,349,480,000
684,970,000

19,759,168,000
1,095,952,000

13,034,450,000

20,855,120,000

Remunerations of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Committee:

r— Position Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Mr. Le Van Nghiep Chairman of the BODs - 2
Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Member of the BODs 59,239,200 61,660,800
Mr. Tran Nhat Thang Member (Term ended on 30 June 2023) 4,806,000 37,128,000
Mr. Nguyen Trong Vinh Member of the BODs 64,932,000 66,468,000
Mr. Tran Dang Hien Member of the BODs 59,239,200 61,660,800
Mr. Tran Dinh Loi Member of the BODs 51,613,200 19,228,800
Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong  Head of Supenisory Committee - -
Ms. Hoang Thi Huong Member of Supenisory Committee 57,306,000 24,036,000
Mr. Vu Ngoc Thu Member of Supenisory Comniittee 57,306,000 24,036,000
Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Hoang Member of Supenisory Committee 4,806,000 37,128,000
(Term ended o 30 June 2022}
Ms. Tran Thi Minh Ha Member of Supenisory Committee 4,806,000 37,128,000
(Term ended on 30 June 2023)
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PC3 - INVESTMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: 78A Duy Tan, Binh Thuan Ward, Hai Chau District, Da Nang City, Vietnam

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Salaries, bonuses and other incomes of Management, the Board of Directors, the Supervisory
Committee and other key personels:

—— bosition Year 2024 Year 2023 O_»o
VND VND iy
*
Mr. Le Van Nghiep Chairman of the BODs 424 878,500 122,687,036 3/ g
Mr. Ngo Tan Hong Chairman (Term Ended on June 30, 2023) 110,705,500 404,764,500 '\\_k
Ms. Nguyen Thi Huong Member of the BODs 7,210,500 7,956,000 °
Mr. Tran Nhat Thang Member (Term ended on 30 June 2023) 3,605,250 7,956,000
Mr. Nguyen Trong Vinh Member of the BODs 7,210,500 7,956,000
Mr. Tran Dang Hien Member of the BODs 7,210,500 7,956,000
Mr. Tran Dinh Loi Member of the BODs 3,605,250 -
Mr. Le Huy Khoi General Director 527,451,580 433,922,286
Mr. Nguyen Duong Long Deputy General Director 365,262,900 489,112,036
(Dismissed on 01 July 2024)
Mr. Tran Vinh Trinh Deputy General Director 469,975,900 489,027,036
Mr. Nguyen Luong Minh Deputy General Director - 100,885,750
(Dismissed on 01 June 2022)
Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong  Head of Supenisory Committee 290,215,400 103,284,400
Mr. Nguyen Minh Hoai Head of Supenisory Committee 60,328,900 281,898,500
(Term ended on 30 June 2023)
Ms. Hoang Thi Huong Member of Supenisory Committee 3,605,250 -
Mr. Vu Ngoc Thu Member of Supenisory Committee 3,605,250 -
Ms. Huynh Thi Kim Hoang Member of Supenisory Committee 3,605,250 7,956,000 D
(Term ended on 30 June 2023)
Ms. Tran Thi Minh Ha Member of Supenisory Committee 3,605,250 7,956,000

(Term ended on 30 June 2023)

9. EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING YEAR

w O

Le Huy Khoi
General Director

Nguyen Minh Hoai
Chief Accountant

Da Nang City, 25 February 2025

Diep Le Truc Xuyen

Preparer




PC3 - INVESTMENT THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Da Nang, April 4, 2025
REPORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

Dear: The General Shareholders’ Meeting of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3 - Investment Joint Stock Company and the
resolution of the Annual General Shareholders' Meeting 2024, the Board of Directors
(BOD) respectfully submits to the General Shareholders' Meeting the report on the
governance and operational results of the BOD and its members, as well as the goals
and tasks for 2025, as follows:

1. Evaluation of the Company's Performance

The Board of Directors has directed the Company to execute the objectives
and tasks for 2024 in accordance with legal regulations, the Company's Charter, and
the resolutions of the Annual General Shareholders' Meeting 2024. Over the past
year, the Company has made significant efforts and has worked hard to achieve the
goals assigned by the General Shareholders' Meeting. The BOD unanimously agrees
that the Company has successfully completed the mission for 2024. The results
achieved are as follows:

1.1. Business Performance

+ The total electricity sales volume reached 93.49 million kWh (101.44% of
the plan); total revenue reached 121.89 billion VND (103.55% of the plan); net profit
after tax reached 32.20 billion VND (114.79% of the plan).

+ Dividend rate was 8% (equal to the target).
+ Contributed 28.27 billion VND to the state budget.

+ Effectively organized the production and maintenance activities for the
plants using a risk-based management (RBM) approach.

1.2. Investment in Infrastructure

a) Dak Pone Hydroelectric Plant Project (Raising the dam of A Reservoir and
constructing the B Reservoir power plant complex)

Construction of the B Reservoir power plant complex (1.6 MW):

- The compensation and land clearance work has been completed, and the Kon
Tum Provincial People's Committee issued the Land Use Rights Certificate for the
remaining land for the pressure pipeline, power plant, discharge channel, and
substation on July 25, 2024. The compensation and land clearance work for the 22kV
transmission line route (the last land area of the project) is still ongoing.

- Online bidding has been organized, and contracts have been signed for the
remaining 5 packages of the project: (1) PC3I-DakPone-G02: Procurement of
materials, equipment, and construction of the 22kV/0.4kV transmission line,
substation for construction power supply; (2) PC3I-DakPone-G04: Procurement and



installation of hydraulic mechanical equipment, electrical equipment in the power
plant, and 22kV substation; (3) PC3I-DakPone-G11: Insurance for the B Reservoir
power plant complex; (4) PC3I-DakPone-G12: Audit of the project’s investment
capital upon completion; and (5) PC3I-DakPone-G14: Supervision of construction
and equipment installation for the B Reservoir power plant complex.

- Agreements with EVNCPC have been completed: (1) Agreement on the
telecommunications system and SCADA for the B Reservoir Hydropower Plant
connected to Kon Tum Power Distribution Center; (2) Design agreement for the
connection works of the B Reservoir Hydropower Plant; and (3) Technical design
agreement for the measurement system and data acquisition system of the B Reservoir
Hydropower Plant.

- Construction and equipment fabrication work: The preparation work has
been completed, and the construction project was launched on May 14, 2024. To date,
the contractor has completed 70% of the foundation excavation; the concrete for the
water intake, pressure pipeline foundation on the phase 1 handover area (May 2024)
has been completed; the pressure pipeline, gantry crane for the machine room, and
the main equipment of the turbine-generator unit have been fabricated and delivered
to the construction site. Currently, the contractors continue to fabricate the remaining
auxiliary equipment according to the contract schedule and carry out the foundation
excavation for the phase 2 land delivery (July 2024). The construction progress is in
line with the contract timeline.

- Disbursement value: 11.084 billion VND.

b) PC3-INVEST Headquarters Project:

- Online bidding has been organized, and contracts have been signed for the
remaining 9 packages of the project: (1) PC3I-TSLV-GO03: Supply of materials and
completion of construction works; (2) PC3I-TSLV-G04: Supply and installation of
the elevator system; (3) PC3I-TSLV-GOS5: Supply and installation of office
equipment; (4) PC3I-TSLV-G06: Supply and installation of conference and video
conferencing equipment; (5) PC3I-TSLV-GO07: Supply and installation of backup
generator; (6) PC3I-TSLV-GO08: Supply and installation of air conditioning system;
(7) PC3I-TSLV-GO09: Supervision of construction works; (8) PC3I-TSLV-GO010:
Insurance for the construction works; (9) PC3I-TSLV-G11: Audit of the project’s
investment capital upon completion..

- Construction work: Preparation work has been completed, and the
construction project was launched on June 7, 2024. To date, the contractor has
completed the piling foundation, basement, and floors; the wall construction has been
completed; finishing works are ongoing. In general, the construction progress is in
line with the contract timeline.

- Disbursement value: 10.093 billion VND.

1.3. Purchase of Fixed Assets for business operations: Purchase of 01 car for
business operations: 0.71 billion VND.

1.4. Corporate Governance

+ Preservation and development of capital sources; cost-saving in operations
(a 30.42% reduction compared to the approved budget).



+ Compliance with state regulations in business operations and corporate
governance; ensuring absolute safety for people and equipment in production and
construction activities; ensuring effective governance regulations for listed
companies.

+ No capital loss, corruption, or waste; a united internal team with no labor
disputes; achieved excellent KPI targets for 2024 and was assessed by EVNCPC as
having completed tasks excellently.

2. Board of Directors' (BOD) Operations and Members
2.1. Summary of Board of Directors’ Meetings and Decisions

The Board of Directors consists of 6 members: 1 full-time Chairman, and 5 non-
executive members (including the CEO). In 2024, the Board held 4 meetings, during
which several matters presented by the CEO were approved. All meetings included
participation from the Supervisory Board members. In 2024, the Board made several
key decisions for the company’s operations, including: Approval of the 2023
performance evaluation results for the Deputy CEO, Chief Accountant, and Heads of
departments; Issuance of the 2024 company’s risk management plan; Setting the final
date for shareholder rights registration and scheduling the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) for 2024; Approval of the 2023 salary and compensation final settlement;
Appointment of a new Chief Accountant; Agreement on a deposit for securing the
implementation of the Dak Pone Hydropower Plant project; Approval of the 2024
salary and compensation plan; Dismissal of Deputy CEO Mr. Nguyén Duong Long;
Approval of the dividend distribution plan for the remainder of 2023 in cash;
Reappointment of the Branch Manager in Kon Tum; Approval of the 2025 major
repair plan for Dak Pone Hydropower Plant; Reappointment of the Head of
Administrative-Human Resources Department, Head of Planning-Investment
Department, and Head of the Project Management Unit; Approval of the 2024
evaluation and classification results for the Deputy CEO, Chief Accountant, and
Heads of departments; Temporary assignment of operational costs and planned salary
fund for 2025; Approval of staff planning for managerial positions from 2021-2026
and 2026-2031 for the departments under the 3rd Power Investment Corporation;
Selection of a commercial lending institution to fund the Dak Pone Hydropower Plant
project (Raising Dam A and constructing the B Reservoir power plant complex), Kon
Tum Province, and other matters within the Board's authority.

2.2. Salaries/Remuneration and Other Benefits of the Board of Directors

+ Full-time Chairman: VND 535.58 million.

+ Board Members: VND 66.45 million/member x 4 members = 265.80 million
VND.

2.3. Board of Directors’ Operational Costs: VND 388.87 million.

2.4. Report on Transactions Between the Company, Subsidiaries, Companies
Controlled by the Company (over 50% equity), and Board Members and Their
Related Parties, Transactions Between the Company and Entities in Which Board
Members Are Founders or Managers Within the Last 3 Years Before the Transaction
Date

In 2024, the company did not engage in any such transactions.

2.5. Independent Director Activities and Their Evaluation of the Board of
Directors' Operations



The Board of Directors has 2 independent members who are directly
responsible for overseeing and directing issues related to scientific technology
applications; construction investment projects, personnel, salary, and benefits for
employees; participation in formulating strategic directions, mid-term development
plans, and annual business plans. In 2024, the independent members performed
excellently in their assigned tasks, contributing to the overall success of the Board
and the Company.

The independent directors assessed that the Board worked carefully and
effectively, closely monitoring the company's activities. The Board members
demonstrated high responsibility for the company's development and shareholder
interests. The Board instructed the executive team on company operations in
response to current conditions and supervised the CEO, managers, and all company
activities in accordance with the company’s Charter and the Board's regulations.
Each Board member consistently excelled in directing the company’s overall
production activities.

3. Monitoring the CEO and Company Management Team’s Performance

In 2024, the CEO implemented effective measures to achieve the objectives
assigned by the General Assembly of Shareholders and the Board. The CEO made
significant efforts to successfully increase electricity production during peak hours,
save operational costs, and implement effective corporate governance. The Board has
monitored the CEO's activities and confirmed that the operations were conducted in
compliance with laws, the company's Charter, and the Board's regulations. The Board
agreed that the CEO successfully completed his tasks in 2024.

The management team consists of 9 members (excluding the CEO), including
the Deputy CEO, Chief Accountant, and Heads of departments such as:
Administrative-Human Resources, Planning-Investment, Finance, Technical, Project
Management, and Branches in Kon Tum and Quéang Tri. Based on their monitoring,
the Board evaluated that the management team adhered to laws, the company’s
Charter, and internal management regulations. In 2024, most of the management team
made exceptional efforts to fulfill their roles and contribute to the company’s overall
achievements.

4. Objectives and Tasks for 2025

The Board of Directors has set the following main objectives and tasks for
2025:

1. Ensure the safe operation of hydropower plants, with a total estimated
electricity output of 100 million kWh; estimated total revenue of VND 126.15 billion;
estimated profit of VND 27.63 billion; expected dividend of 8% of charter capital.

2. Dak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (Raising Dam A and constructing the
B Reservoir power plant complex):

Construction of the B Reservoir Power Plant Complex (1.6MW):

- Completion of compensation and site clearance for the 22kV power line (the
final land section of the project).

- Continue with the construction and installation of equipment, with the plant
expected to be completed and put into operation by October 2025.

- Estimated disbursement value: VND 18.281 billion.
3.PC3-INVEST Office Building Project:



- Continue with construction and installation of equipment, with the office
building expected to be completed and put into use by June 2025.

- Estimated disbursement value: VND 14.283 billion.

4. Procurement of Fixed Assets for Production and Business Operations:
Procurement of 01 car for production and business operations, valued at VND 0.8
billion.

The Board of Directors sincerely thanks the trust and support of the
shareholders over the past time and hopes to continue receiving the support of the
shareholders for the sustainable development of the Company.

We wish the delegates and shareholders good health, happiness, and success.
Thank you very much!

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

¥/'CONG TY )
cO PHAN
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PORT ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
AT THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
Dear: The General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company (PC3-
INVEST);

Pursuant to Resolution No. 54/NO-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders — PC3-INVEST;

In accordance with the functions and duties of the Supervisory Board as
stipulated by the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter, the Supervisory
Board respectfully reports to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on
its activities in 2024, including the results of the review of the financial statements,
the business performance report, and the evaluation of the Company's management
and operations in 2024, as follows:

PART I. RESULTS OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD'S ACTIVITIES

I. THE SUPERVISORY BOARD'S ACTIVITIES

1. Summary of Meetings and Implementation of Supervisory Activities

In 2024, the Supervisory Board developed a plan and work program to carry out
its duties of inspecting and supervising the Company's activities in accordance with
the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter.

* Supervisory Board Meetings

- Participation in periodic Board of Directors meetings: March 13, 2024; April
11, 2024; July 27, 2024; and October 29, 2024.

- Supervisory Board meetings:

+ March 4, 2024: Meeting to approve the review report on the 2023 financial
statements.

+ June 27, 2024: Meeting to approve the mid-year audit and supervision report
for the first six months of 2024.

+ July 19, 2024: Meeting to approve the review report on the 2024 interim
financial statements.

+ September 30, 2024: Meeting to approve the 2024 specialized supervision
report.

2. Remuneration and Other Benefits of the Supervisory Board in 2024

+ Head of the Supervisory Board: VND 328.70 million.

+ Supervisory Board members: VND 63 million/person x 2 members = VND
126 million.

3. Operating Expenses of the Supervisory Board in 2024

Total expenses: VND 36 million.



II. RESULTS OF SUPERVISION ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS,

INVESTMENT, AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN 2024
1. Business Performance Results

In 2024, PC3-INVEST successfully ensured occupational safety and hygiene,
with no work-related accidents or subjective incidents. The operation of hydropower
plants complied with all national regulations on environmental protection, fire
prevention and fighting, and disaster prevention and rescue (PCCN, PCTT-TKCN).
Additionally, the company effectively implemented maintenance under the Risk-
Based Maintenance (RBM) methodology. The hydropower plants maximized water
resource efficiency, proactively addressed difficulties, and managed flood conditions
to ensure safe and efficient production. Cost-saving measures and effective cash flow
management helped reduce financial expenses. Total commercial electricity output:
93.49 million kWh, reaching 101.44% of the plan: Bdk Pone Hydropower Plant:
59.48 million kWh (97.67% of the plan). Pa Krong 1 Hydropower Plant: 34.01
million kWh (108.78% of the plan). Total revenue: VND 121.89 billion (103.55% of
the plan), including: Electricity sales revenue: VND 116.73 billion, financial and
other revenues: VND 5.16 billion, after-tax profit: VND 32.20 billion (114.79% of
the plan).

2. Investment and Construction Activities

PC3-INVEST managed investment and construction projects in strict
compliance with national regulations, shareholder resolutions, and the Board of
Directors' decisions.

2.1. bak Pone Hydropower Plant Project (Upgrading Reservoir A Dam &
Constructing Reservoir B Plant Cluster)

Construction of Reservoir B Plant Cluster (1.6MW):

- Completed land clearance compensation; the Kon Tum Provincial People's
Committee issued a land use right certificate on July 25, 2024, for pressure pipeline
land, plant site, discharge channel, and step-up substation. Compensation for 22kV
transmission line land is ongoing.

- Conducted online bidding and signed contracts for the remaining five project
packages.

- Finalized agreements with EVNCPC, including: (1) Telecommunications and
SCADA system connection of Reservoir B Hydropower Plant to the Kon Tum Power
Company Control Center. (2) Connection design agreement for Reservoir B
Hydropower Plant. (3) Technical design agreement for metering and data collection
systems.

- Construction & Equipment Manufacturing: Site preparation and
groundbreaking took place on May 14, 2024. By the end of 2024, all contractors met
contractual progress requirements.

2.2. PC3-INVEST Office Building Project

- Conducted online bidding and signed contracts for the remaining nine project
packages.

- Site preparation and groundbreaking took place on June 7, 2024. Until now,
contractor completed pile foundation, basement, and floor structures; finished wall
construction; continuing to finishworks. Overall, the project is progressing on
schedule.



3. Financial Management & Shareholder Affairs

3.1. Financial Management

PC3-INVEST adhered to national regulations and the financial management
policies of EVN and EVNCPC, ensuring profitability, capital preservation, and
sustainable growth. Tax contributions to the state budget: VND 28.27 billion.
Financial performance indicators: Return on equity (ROE): 9.63%, Debt-to-total
assets ratio: 14.69%, Current ratio: 3.34 times, Operational cost savings: 30.42% of
the amount approved by the Board of Directors.

PC3-INVEST fully complied with national securities regulations for large public
companies, with no shareholder complaints or violations.

Based on Circular 200/2015/TT-BTC (December 15, 2015) and Circular
77/2021/TT-BTC (September 17, 2021) issued by the Ministry of Finance, which
govern financial supervision, performance evaluation, and public financial disclosure
for state-owned and state-invested enterprises, PC3-INVEST achieved an "A" rating
for outstanding performance in 2024.

3.2. Labor & Operating Cost Management

- Labor Management: As of December 31, 2024, PC3-INVEST employed 67
staff members, all of whom received full insurance benefits (health insurance,
unemployment insurance, and social insurance) as per labor laws. Employees were
provided with regular health check-ups and personal protective equipment.
Workplace democracy was upheld, ensuring no labor disputes or complaints. PC3-
INVEST maintained a stable workforce and a safe working environment, with no
redundancies.

- Operating Cost Management: Operating expenses were strictly controlled, with
cost reductions implemented wherever possible. Total operational costs in 2024:
VND 5.74 billion, equivalent to 69.58% of the Board-approved budget (VND 8.25
billion).

III. ASSESSMENT OF TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY,
ITS SUBSIDIARIES, AND ENTITIES IN WHICH IT HOLDS MORE THAN
50% CONTROLLING INTEREST, WITH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, THE CEO, OTHER EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, AND
RELATED PARTIES; TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE CEO;
TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE COMPANY AND COMPANIES WHERE
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, THE CEO ARE FOUNDERS
OR HAVE BEEN EXECUTIVES IN THE LAST 03 YEARS BEFORE THE
TRANSACTION DATE.

In 2024, the Company did not engage in any of the aforementioned transactions.

IV. RESULTS OF SUPERVISING THE MANAGEMENT AND
ADMINISTRATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE CEO

1. Supervision of the Management and Administration by the Board of
Directors and the CEO

In 2024, the Board of Directors and the Executive Board implemented various
proactive measures to direct and manage the company, ensuring the fulfillment of
targets set in the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolution. The after-
tax profit reached VND 32.20 billion, achieving 114.79% of the planned target, while
maintaining and preserving shareholder equity.



The activities of the Board of Directors (BOD) were carried out in accordance
with the Law, the Company’s Charter, and the BOD’s Operating Regulations. The BOD
held regular meetings, conducted collective discussions, and had all meeting minutes
properly recorded by the Company Secretary, which were then formalized into
Resolutions. The Executive Board fully implemented all tasks in compliance with the
BOD’s Resolutions and relevant regulations.

The Executive Board actively managed the company’s operations, effectively
overcoming challenges such as storms, floods, and landslides to ensure safe and
efficient production.

2. Implementation of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders’
Resolutions

Based on Resolution No. 54/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, the Supervisory
Board acknowledges that all aspects of the Company’s operations have been conducted
in compliance with State regulations, the Company’s Charter, the AGM Resolutions,
and the Board of Directors’ decisions, specifically as follows:

+ Regarding business operations: The company ensured safe operations, achieving
a post-tax profit of VND 32.20 billion, equivalent to 114.79% of the target. The dividend
payout met the AGM’s assigned level (8%). The company successfully preserved,
developed, and utilized capital efficiently while maintaining occupational safety and
environmental protection in compliance with legal regulations.

+ Regarding investment and construction: PC3-INVEST has made significant
efforts to overcome challenges and limitations to complete investment preparation
procedures, site clearance, contractor selection, and project implementation. The
company successfully executed the construction of the Pak Pone Hydropower Plant
(HO B cluster - 1.6 MW) and the PC3-INVEST Headquarters Project in compliance
with state regulations, ensuring no errors or violations occurred.

+ The corporate governance efforts have been continuously strengthened and
effectively implemented. The company has optimized operating costs, increased labor
productivity, and proactively executed various management solutions and technical
innovations. PC3-INVEST has strictly complied with state regulations across all
operational and governance areas, ensuring no instances of embezzlement or
wastefulness.

+ The Party organizations, Trade Union, and Ho Chi Minh Communist Youth
Union have operated in accordance with their respective charters, making significant
contributions to the overall success of the Company. Employees have been provided
with a safe and democratic working environment, with their rights fully ensured under
legal regulations, along with stable jobs and secure incomes.

V. ASSESSMENT OF COORDINATION BETWEEN THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD, BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTOR,
AND SHAREHOLDERS & EVALUATION OF THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD'S ACTIVITIES

1. Supervision of Board of Directors’ Activities: The Supervisory Board was
invited to and attended all Board of Directors (BOD) meetings, closely monitoring the
implementation of resolutions from the General Meeting of Shareholders. During these
meetings, the Supervisory Board provided timely recommendations to the BOD on
issues requiring resolution to improve management efficiency. All recommendations
from the Supervisory Board were carefully considered and addressed by the BOD,



ensuring compliance with legal regulations, enhancing governance effectiveness, and
protecting shareholder rights.

2. Throughout its operations, the Supervisory Board received full cooperation and
support from the BOD, the General Director, and various departments within the
Company. This collaboration facilitated effective supervision and oversight of the
Company's management and operational activities.

3. The Supervisory Board and its members have made great efforts to fulfill their
duties with honesty, responsibility, and diligence, in compliance with current laws and
the Company’s Charter. All members actively participated in BOD meetings and
internal audits, ensuring continuous supervision of the Company’s operations.

PHAN II. APPRAISAL RESULTS

FINANCIAL REPORT; BUSINESS PERFORMANCE REPORT; AND
MANAGEMENT & OPERATIONS ASSESSMENT REPORT FOR 2024

* Legal Basis

- Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System issued
under Circular No. 200/2014/TT-BTC dated April 22, 2014, and Circular No.
53/2016/TT-BTC dated March 21, 2016, of the Ministry of Finance, along with relevant
legal regulations on the preparation and presentation of financial statements;

- Decision No. 141/QD-EVN dated November 18, 2021, of the EVN Board of
Members on the issuance of regulations on internal audit, financial supervision, and
compliance control within Vietnam Electricity (EVN);

- The 2024 financial statements of PC3-INVEST, audited by ECOVIS AFA
Vietnam Audit, Valuation, and Consulting Co., Ltd., as per Audit Report No.
22/2025/BCKT-E.AFA dated February 25, 2025;

- The business performance report and proposed profit distribution of the
Company;

- The management and operational assessment report of the Company for 2024.

I. Results of the Review of the 2024 Financial Statements and Business
Performance

1. Results of the Review of the Financial Statements

- The financial statements for 2024 of PC3-INVEST have been audited by
ECOVIS AFA Vietnam, a reputable and legally qualified independent auditing firm
authorized to audit listed companies. The audited financial statements have been
prepared and presented in accordance with the current accounting regulations, providing
a true and fair view of the company's financial position as of December 31, 2024, as
well as its business performance and cash flow for the fiscal year ending on the same
date. These statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards (VAS), the
Vietnamese corporate accounting system, and relevant legal regulations on financial
reporting.

- Financial position of the company as of December 31, 2024:

Indicator 2024

I. Liquidity Indicators

1. Current Ratio (times) 3,34

II. Financial Autonomy Indicators

1. Debt-to-Total Assets Ratio (times) 0,15




Indicator 2024

2. Debt-to-Equity Ratio (times)

0,17

As of December 31, 2024, the company's financial position demonstrates
efficiency and positive stability:

- Accounts receivable and payable are strictly controlled, with no overdue or
uncollectible receivables. The company's financial indicators, including capital
structure, assets, and liquidity as of December 31, 2024, reflect a strong financial
position. Shareholders' equity is preserved and continues to grow. The company's
financial independence is maintained within a safe and acceptable level.

2. Assessment of Business Performance and Capital Preservation: The overall
business performance and capital preservation of the Company as of December 31,
2024, are as follows:

No. Content Company Note
1 | Total revenue (million VND) 116.730,81
2 | Total profit after tax (million VND) 32.205,55
3 | Charter capital (million VND) 333.398,91
Equity at the beginning of the period
4 (million VND) 359.459,44
Equity at the end of the period (million
5 VND) 369.631,26
6 | Capital growth ratio = (5)/(4) (times) 1,03
7 | Capital preservation assessment Capital preservation

- The Company always utilizes capital for its designated purposes, ensuring no
subjective errors lead to capital loss; it consistently preserves and grows shareholders'
equity.

I1. Assessment Results of the 2024 Company Management and Operations
Evaluation Report

In 2024, the Board of Directors and the General Director managed and operated
the Company with integrity, responsibility, and prudence, in full compliance with the
Law, the Company’s Charter, and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders. The Company's business operations were profitable, with all financial
indicators maintained at a secure level, ensuring the preservation and growth of
shareholders' capital. The Supervisory Board concurs with the evaluation of the
Company's management and operations for 2024.

This report presents the assessment of the Supervisory Board's activities, along
with the audit of the financial statements, business performance report, and the
evaluation of the Company's management and operations for 2024. The Supervisory
Board respectfully submits this report to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.




The Supervisory Board sincerely appreciates the trust and support of our esteemed
shareholders over the past period and looks forward to continued support in the future.

We wish all distinguished delegates and shareholders good health and success.

Sincerely,
ON BEHALF OF THE
Recipients: SUPERVISORY BOARD
-As addressed; HEAD OF THE BOARD

-EVNCPC (for reporting); =
-Board of Directors; 4 /{
-Filed by the Supervisory Board. '

Huynh Thi Thuy Duong



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Da Nang, April 4’(*”, 2025

REPORT
Regarding the introduction of independent auditing firms for the selection of
financial statement audits for the year 2025

Dear: General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

To ensure that the financial statement audit for the year 2025 of PC3-Investment
Joint Stock Company complies with legal regulations and the company's charter, the
Supervisory Board respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval the proposal for selecting an independent auditing firm to
audit the financial statements for 2023, as follows:

1. Criteria for Selecting an Independent Auditing Firm

- A reputable independent auditing firm approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit public companies and listed organizations.

- Offers a reasonable audit fee in line with the scope, content, and timeline required
by the company.
2. Proposal for the List of Independent Auditing Firms for Selection

Based on the above criteria, the Supervisory Board respectfully proposes the
following list of independent auditing firms that meet the requirements:

- AAC Auditing and Accounting Co., Ltd.

- RSM Vietnam Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

- ECOVIS AFA Vietnam Auditing, Valuation, and Consulting Co., Ltd.
- A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Supervisory Board respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval, and authorizes the Board of Directors to
decide on selecting one of the four auditing firms mentioned above to conduct the
financial statement audit for the year 2025.

Sincere!
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY
-As addressed; BOARD

-Board of Directors: HEAD OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD

-Filed by the Supervisory Board.

Huynh Thi Thuy Duong



PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
STOCK COMPANY

Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 3 2-/Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 4 , 2025

REPORT
Regarding the Profit Distribution Plan for 2024
and the Proposed Profit Distribution Plan for 2025

Dear: General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company
Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the 2024 business performance results audited by ECOVIS AFA
Vietnam Co., Ltd.; and the proposed plan for 2025;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders the profit distribution plan for 2024 and the proposed profit distribution
plan for 2025, as follows:

1. Profit Distribution for 2024

No. Content Amount (VND)
1 Outstanding Shares (shares) 33.339.891
2 After-Tax Profit 32.205.553.886
3 Accumulated Profit Carried Forward from 2023 2.930.498.523
4 | Profit Allocated to Funds (2+3) 35.136.052.409
5 Distribution to Funds (6.1+5.2) 4.715.390.263
5] | Bonus and Welfare Fund 4.450.287.013
According to Point a, Clause 1, Article 18 of Circular
a@ | 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH dated 01/09/2016 3.620,308.000
b e e e | gy
5.2 | Management Bonus Fund 265.103.250
6 Undistributed Profit Carried Forward to 2025 3.748.749.346
7 Remaining Profit for Dividend Distribution (4-5-6) 26.671.912.800
3 Dividend Payout Ratio (8/1) 8%

Implementation Timeline: Dividend payment for 2024 in cash at a rate of 8%, expected to be
executed in Q2-Q3/2025.

Note:

- The Bonus and Welfare Fund for 2024 is allocated according to Point a, Clause
1, Article 18 of Circular 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH dated 01/09/2016, equivalent to three




months of the average realized salary, and according to Point b, Clause 1, Article 18 of
Circular 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH dated 01/09/2016, is 0.83 billion VND (According to
this regulation, if actual profit exceeds the planned profit, then in addition to the Bonus
and Welfare Fund allocation under Point a, the company may allocate an additional
amount equal to 20% of the excess profit over the planned profit, i.e., (32.20 billion
VND - 28.06 billion VND) x 20% = 0.83 billion VND, equivalent to 0.69 months of the
average realized salary).

- The Management Bonus Fund is equivalent to 1.5 months of salary and
remuneration (according to Circular No. 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH dated 01/09/2016).

IL. Proposed Profit Distribution Plan for 2025

No. Content Amount(VND)
1 | OQutstanding Shares (shares) 33.339.891
2 | After-Tax Profit 27.629.877.178
3 Reversal of Profit from the Development Investment 1.131.301.456
Fund T
4 | Accumulated Profit Carried Forward from 2024 3.748.749.346
5 | Profit Allocated to Funds (2+3+4) 32.509.927.98]
6 | Distribution to Funds (6.1+6.2) 4.793.025.903
Reward Fund and Welfare Fund for employees (according to
6.1 | Point a, Clause 1, Article 27 — Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP 4.375.680.250
dated February 28, 2025) (provisional estimate)
Reward Fund for the members of Board of Management,
Board of Directors, Board of Supervisor (according fo Point
6.2 a, Clause 2, Article 27 — Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP dated 417.345.653
February 28, 2025) (provisional estimate)
7 | Undistributed Profit Carried Forward to 2026 1.044.989.278
8 | Projected Profit for Dividend Distribution (5-6-7) 26.671.912.800
9 | Dividend Payout Ratio (8/1) 8%

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the Board of Directors to determine the dividend payout
ratio, timing, and method of interim dividend payment, as well as to decide on related procedures for the
2025 interim dividend payment based on the Company's situation.

Recipients:
-As above;
-Archived: Office, Accounting.

The BOD respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval./.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
AN OF THE BOARD




PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT

STOCK COMPANY

No.: 33 /Rep.-BOD

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

REPORT
Approval of Salaries and Remunerations for 2024 Implementation
and Salary and Remuneration Plan for 2025 of the BOD and SB

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

Company

Da Nang, April 4 , 2025

Dear: General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock

Pursuant to the performance results of 2024; the duties and authority of the
BOD and the SB in 2025.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the salaries and remunerations implemented in 2024 and
the salary and remuneration plan for 2025 of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board, as follows:

I. Salaries and Remunerations Implemented in 2024

Unit: Million VND

Monthly Monthl Number | Number Annual
No. BOD, SB and EM Remune S‘;la y of of Remunerati
ration Y | Persons | months on/Salary

{ | Chairman of the. Board 30,816 I 12 369,792
of Directors

5 |Board Member, General 29,675 i 12 356,100
Director

5 | Deputy Genersl 26,251 1 12 315,012
Director 1

4 |Deputy General 26,251 1 6 157,506
Director 2

5 | Chiefofthe 27,392 1 12 328,704
Supervisory Board

6 | Chief Accountant 23,968 1 9 215,712
Board Members and

7 | Supervisory Board 5,250 6 12 378,000
Members
Total: 2.120,826




II. Salary and Remuneration Plan for 2025

Unit: Million VND

i Num | Numb
Board of Dlre-ctors, Monthly Monthly | berof | erof Salary, i
No. | Board of Supervisors and | remuner remuneratio
: salary | perso | month
Board of Management ation - § n per year
Full-time Chairman of the
1 Board of Mansgement 41,036 1 12 492,436
2 | General Director 39,517 1 12 474,198
3 | Deputy General Director 33,093 1 12 397,116
y | FEAEChiEToithe 34418 | 1 | 35 120,463
Board of Supervisors
S | Chief Accountant 31,917 1 12 383,006
g TR CARE R BB e 1| 85 58,511
Board of Supervisors
Part-time members of
7 | Board of Directors, Board 6,619 7 12 555,977
of Supervisors
Total: 2.481,707

Based on the results of business operations in 2025, the Company will settle
the salaries and remuneration for the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, and
Board of Management in accordance with Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP dated
February 28, 2025, issued by the Government, as well as other relevant state
regulations.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval./.

Recipients:

- As above;
- Archived: Office, Accounting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD




PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No.: 34 /Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 4- , 2025
REPORT

Reversal of After-Tax Profit from the Development Investment Fund

Dear: General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders the plan for the reversal of after-tax profit from the
Development Investment Fund, with the amount of VND 1,131,301,456. (In
words: One billion, one hundred thirty-one million, three hundred one
thousand, four hundred fifty-six dong).

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
-As above; DIRECTORS
-Archived: Office, Accounting. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD




PC3-INVESTMENT JOINT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness
No.: 3£ /Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 4, 2025
REPORT

Re: Dismissal of Members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory
Board for the 2023-2028 Term

Dear: General Meeting of Shareholders of PC3-Investment Joint Stock
Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the resignation letter from Mr. Tran Pang Hién and Mr. Nguyén
Trong Vinh regarding their positions as members of the Board of Directors for the
2023-2028 term;

Pursuant to the resignation letter from Ms. Huynh Thi Thity Duong and Mr.
Vil Ngoc Thu regarding their positions as members of the Supervisory Board for the
2023-2028 term.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits the following matter for the
General Meeting of Sharcholders to review and vote on:

* Dismiss Mr. Tran Diang Hién from his position as a member of the Board
of Directors for the 2023-2028 term.

* Dismiss Mr. Nguyén Trong Vinh from his position as a member of the
Board of Directors for the 2023-2028 term.

* Dismiss Ms. Huynh Thi Thuy Duong from her position as a member of the
Supervisory Board for the 2023-2028 term.

* Dismiss Mr. Vii Ngoc Thu from his position as a member of the
Supervisory Board for the 2023-2028 term.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits this to the General Meeting of
Shareholders.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; DIRECTORS
- Archive: Office, Accounting. CHA :‘-"':1;"-*3""-"' QF THE BOARD -

Le Van Nghiep



PC3-INVESTMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
JOINT STOCK COMPANY Independence - Freedom - Happiness

No.: 40 /Rep.-BOD Da Nang, April 10, 2025

REPORT
Re: Election of Additional Members to the Board of Directors and Supervisory
Board for the 5 year term (2025-2030)

Dea: Dai hoi ddng ¢b dong Cong ty C6 phan Dau tu Dién Iyc 3

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020,

Pursuant to the Charter of PC3-Investment Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Plan for the Election of Additional Members to the
Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board, and the document from the
Central Power Corporation regarding personnel matters.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits the following matter for the
General Meeting of Shareholders to review and vote on:

* Elect Mr. Tran Coéng Minh as an additional member of the Board of
Directors for the 5 year term (2025-2030) — currently serving as Chief of Office of
the Central Power Corporation.

* Elect Mr. Nguyén Tén Luc as an additional member of the Board of
Directors for the 5 year term (2025-2030) — currently a member of the Board of
Directors and Deputy General Director of Khanh Hoa Power Joint Stock Company.

* Elect Mr. Lé Ky Anh as an additional member of the Supervisory Board
for the 5 year term (2025-2030) — currently serving as Head of Internal Audit and
Financial Supervision Department of the Central Power Corporation.

* Elect Mr. Duong Ngoc Thinh as an additional member of the Supervisory
Board for the 5 year term (2025-2030) — currently serving as a Specialist at the
General Affairs Department of the Central Power Corporation.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits this to the General Meeting of

Shareholders for consideration.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; DIRECTORS

- Archive: Office, Accounting.

Le van Nghiep
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